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Management Discussion and Analysis

January 3. 2012
T the Honorable Mayor and City Council
Ta the Cinizens of the City of Mormon

On behalf of the City Administration for the City of Nonon, we offer the readers of the City's financial statements this narative overview
and analysis of the City for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2011,

inancial Hi
*  The assers of the City exceeded its labilities at the end of the scal year by $ 12,366,273 (net assets).

s A June M, 2001, the City reported combined ending und balances of § 2471012, a decrease of § 473,570 in comparison with
the prior year. This decrease is mainly the result of a budgeted drawdown of prior vear reserves to balance the FY2011 budget
and funds used to cover FY 2010 encumbrances.

s Asof June 30, 2001, the General Fund had a 1otal Fund Balance of $ 2216152

*  The wotal debt outstanding s of Junc 30, 2001 was % 16,119,674, which includes the component enits. As of June 30, 2011, the
City’s Legal Debt Margin was $ 11,660,175,

#  The Water/Sewer Proprictary Fund had an incrense in Net Assets Tor the year of § 2827423, The completion of a number of
magjor sewet improvement projects over the pext several vears, incleding FY 2001, will continue o increase the Net Assets of the
Fund,

iew of Fina
This discussion and analysis is intended 1o serve as an introduction 1o the City’s basic financial statements. The City's financial statements
are comprised of three components:

o  Government - wide financial statcmenis
o Fund financial statements
s Notes to the financial statements

This report also includes sther supplementary information in addition (o the basic tinancial statements,

Ciovernment-wide financial statements — The Government-wide financial statements are designed o provide readers with a broad overview
of the City's finances in a manner similar to a private sector busingss,

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Clty's assets and liabilivies, with the difference between the two reported as
net assets. Cher Hime, increases or decreases to net assets may senve as a useful indicator as to whether the City's financial position is
improving or deteriorting,

The statement of activitics presems information showing how the City's net asscts changed during the most recent fiscal vear. All changes
in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 1o the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash Nows
Thus, revenues and expenses are reponted Tor some items that will only result in cash flows in future periods, such as uncollected taves

The Government-wide financial statements include not only ihe City of Norton (primary government), hut also its component units: the
MNoron City Schools and the Norton Indusirial Development Authority (N1DA)

Fund financial statements - A fund is a grouping of related aceounts thar is used o mamtain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. All of the funds of the City of Norton can be divided into three categories: governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Notes 1o the hnancial statements — The notes provade additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the financial statements.



Government—Wide Financial Analysis - Primary Government

Summary of Statement of Net Assets - June 30, 2011

Governmental Business Type
Activities Activities Total

Current & otherassets 5 4,396,744 § 1170347 £ 5.567.091
Capnal assets 12,881,798 10,786,645 23,668,443
Other noncurrent assets 40,591 ___ 5807 46,398

Total Assets $17,319.133 $11.962,799 § 29,281,932
Current & other liabilives § 2,149,213 £ 1,691,901 £ 3841114
Long-term liabilities 93107 873 3486859 ] 4,732

Total Liabilities §. 11,547,086 §_5.178.760 516,725,846
Net Assels;
Invested in Capital assets
(Met of related deb) 5 3325755 § 6.989.99] 510315746
Restricted -} -0- -0-
Unrestricted 2446202 (205.952) 2,240,340

Total Net Assets § 5,772,047 § 6,784,039 £12,556,086

Net assets serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The City’s combined net assets otal § 12,556,086
excluding discretely presented component units, By far, the largest portion of this represents investments in capital assets.
such as land, buildings, machinery, and equipment. Capital assets net of related debt wal § 10,315,746, The City of Norton
uses these capital assets 1o provide services 1o citizens: and thus these assets are not available for future spending. Although
the City's investment in i1s capital assets is reporied net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed 1o repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilites,

Governmental Activities — Governmental activities decreased the City's net assets by § 792,144, Key elements of this
decrease are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services S 494.628
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,320,558
Capital Grants and Contributions 20441
General Revenues:

Property Taxes 2.393.798
Other Local Taxes 4 822 364
Other _ 145793
Total Revenues $10,197.582
Expenses:
Gieneral Government 1.512954
Public Safety 2355373
Public Works 2,355,511
Health and Welfare 1.265.568
Education 1,957.075
Parks, Recreation, Culture 507,768
Community Development 771,312
Imierest of Long Term Debt 324.163
Total Expenses $10,989.726
Imcrease (Decrease) in Net Assets S (792.144)

Included in the Total Expenses are non-cash items including depreciation. This means that under the full accrual method, net
assets decreased by § 792144,



Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds — The focus of the City's povernmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. This information is useful in assessing the City's financing requirements. In particular.
unrcserved fund balance may serve as a uscful measure of the City’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year. The City's governmental funds include the General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds.

Governmental Fund Highlights:

The largest sources of revenue in the General Fund for the yvear are as follows:

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Local Sales and Use Tax £ 1,882,301 51,887 804 £2.023409 £ 1.901.018 £ 1,889,055
Real Property Tax % 1,605.349 2,273 409 1,601,572 1,443,286 1,261,403
Restaurant Food Taxes S 1,126,150 1.061.575 1.025,155 Q30,578 R48.702
Business License Taxes S 773353 T95.833 901,209 826,412 813,906
Street & Highway Maintenance $ 723930 698 460 T03.053 T30.086 666,209
VDOT £ -0)- -0- - - 662,349
Personal Property Taxes £ 443631 429,833 430 g22 412,756 452 505

The City's assessed value of real estate for the vear was § 228,064 866, The real estate 1ax rate is § B0 per § 100 of assessed
value, For the year, the percent of levy collected was 93.21%.

The City's business type activity is the Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund. During the year this fund had an increase in net assets
of § 2827423, In addition, cash and cash equivalents decreased by § 142,561 1o $ 122,902,

The City's General Fund Final Budget to Actual comparison for the year was as follows:

Final Budget Actual Variance
Favarable
Unfavorable.)
Total Revenues 5 10469227 £ 18.047 656 $ 7578419
Total Expenses 10.713.441 18,521,226 £ (7.807.78%)
Excess of Revenucs
Orver Expenses § (473.570)

Additional information may be obtained by contacting the City Manager, Mr. E. W. Ward or the Director of Finance, Mr. Jeff
Shupe a1 the City of Norton offices 276-67%-1160.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City ol Moron
Morton, Virginia 24273

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate diseretely
presented component units, cach major fund. and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Norton, Virginia, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the City’s basic hnancial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These
financial statements arc the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our aodi.

We conducted our audit in accordance with suditing standards generally accepred in the United Siates of Amenica and the standands
applicable o financial audits contained in Governmen) Auditing Standards. issued by the Comperoller General of the United Siates: and the
Specifications for Avdits of Counties, Cities and Towns issued hy the Avditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwesith of Virginia.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 10 obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial
stalements are free of material misstatement.  An sudit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the general purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the sceounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presentation. We believe that our
apudit provides a reasonable hasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the fGnancial statements referred o above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
povernmental activities, the business-type activities, the sggregate discretely presented component units, esch major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Norton, Virginia as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in fnancial position
and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the vear then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepred in the United
Sunes of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards. we have also issued our report dated January 31, 2012 on our consideration of the
City of Norton's intemal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with certiin provisions of laws, regulations.
contracts and grants. The purpose of the repon is 1o describe the scope of our testing on intemal controls over financial reponing and
complisnce and the results of that testing. and nol 1o provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reponting or compliance
That repon 15 an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. and should be read in conjunclion
with this repont in considering the results of our audit

The management’s discussion and analysis and other statistical information on pages 5 through 7 and 67 through 82, are not a required part
of the besic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally sccepted in the United
States of America. We have applied centain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inguiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and cxpress no
opinion on i,

Our audit was conducted Tor the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Ciny's basic
finuncial statements, The information listed as other supplementary information and compliance section information in the accompanying
tabile of contents, including the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U5, Office of Management and Budger Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governmenis, and Non-Prafil Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required pant of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected w0 the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and. in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole,

~Thows,

THROWER, BLANTON & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Cerntified Public Accountants

January 31, 2012
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M S BASED ON AN AUD I AL STATEMENTS PERFO IN ACCORDANCE
WITH VE ENT AUDITING STANDARD

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Norton
Norton, Virginia 24273

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Norton, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have
issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2012, We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the Specifications for Audits of Counties. Cities. and
Towns. 1ssued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit for the year ended June 30, 2011. we considered the City's internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the City's financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial
reporting, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal contred exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, 10 prevent or detect and correct misstaterments on a timely basis. A
maferial weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the entity”s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis,

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed 1o identify all deficiencies in the internal control over financial reporing that might be
deficiencics, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intermal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

As pan of obiaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of maicrial misstaiement, we
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracis and grants, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our test disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reporied 1o management of the City of Norton, Virginia in a separate letter dated January 31,
2012,

This report is solely intended for the information and wse of management, others within the Organization, City Council and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

—TAat,

THROWER, BLANTON & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Cenified Public Accountants
January 31, 2012
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ENDENT AUDITOR'S RE

MAJOR PRO AND 1"'1' NAL CONTROL OV M N
IN NCE WITH OMB CIRC A-13

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Noron
Noron, Virginia 24273

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the City cf Norton, Virginia. with the types ufcumpiiance requirements descnibed in the

Management and Bud A-133 Compliance S that are applicable 1o each of its
majnr r federal programs for the vear ended June 3EI Eﬂl 1. The City's magor federal pmgrnm-: are identified in the summary of
Federal Awards section of the accompanying supplemental schedules. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and gramts applicable 1o each of s major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit,

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards geperally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contamed in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Those suandards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 10 above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Ciy's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumsiances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does nol provide a lcgal determination on
the City's compliance with those reguirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred 10 above that are applicable 1o each
of its major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2011,

ontrol Ow iance
The management of the City of Morton is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemmal control over
compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs, In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major lederal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and
cormrect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencics, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncomphance with a type of compliance requiremem of a federal program
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected. on a timely basis.

10



The Honorable Members of the City Council

City of Noron

Norton, Virginia 24273

Page 2

{Independent Auditor’s report on Compliance with
Requirements Applicable o Each Major Program and
Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with
OMR Circular A-133)

COwr consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intermal control over compliance that might be deficiencies,
significant deliciencics, or material weaknesses, We did not identify any deficiencies in imtermal control over compliance that
we consider 1o be material weaknesses, as defined above,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the Organization, City Council and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties.

T rswn, Kloton ¢ At /¢ -

THROWER, BLANTON & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
Ceriified Public Accountanis

Janwary 31, 2012

11
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH COMMONWEALTH
OF VIRGINIA LAWS, REGULATIONS, CONTRACTS AND GRANTS

The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Norlon
Morten, Virginia 24273

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Norton, Virginia {the "City") as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2012,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auvditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States; and Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of
the Commonwealth of Virginia, Those standards and specifications require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance abowt whether the peneral purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement.

Compliance with Commonwealth of Virginia laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to the City is the
responsibility of management of the City, As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose
financial statemnents are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of the City's compliance with certain provisions of
the Commonwealth of Virginia's laws, regulations, contracts and grants. However, our ohjective was not 1o provide an
opinion on overall compliance with such provisions.,  Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion,  Following 1s a
summary of the Commonwealth of Virginia's laws, regulations, contracts and grants {as specified in Specifications for Audits
of Counties. Cities and Towns, Chapter Three) for which we performed tests of compliance.

Code of Virginia

* Budget and Appropriation Laws * Debt Provisions

* Cash and Investment Laws * Procurement Laws

* Conflicts Retirement Systems * Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed
* Local Retirement Systems Property Act

*

Personal Property Tax Relief Act
State Agency Requirements
* Education

* Highway Maintenance Funds
* Social Services



The Honorable Members of the City Council
City of MNorton

Morton, Virginia 24273

{Report on Compliance with Commonwealth of

Virginia Laws, Regulations, Contracts and Grants)
Page 2

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance with the provisions referred o in the preceding paragraph,
other than the exception noted above. With respect to items not tested, nothing came 1o our attention that caused us to believe
that the City had not complied, in all material respects, with those provisions,

This report 15 intended solely for the information and wse of the City Council, management, the Auditor of Public Accounts
and applicable state agencies, and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

THRGWER B AJWTG’V& ASSDCIATES P, C |
Certified Public Accountants

Tanvary 31, 2012



CITY OF NORTON

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Investmenls
Receivahle, net
Prepaid expense
Mote receivable
Due from other governmental wnils
Due from other funds
[we from primary government
Deferred bond cost
Capital assets, non-depreciahble
Capital assets, depreciable, net

Total Assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payahle and accrued liabilities
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Accrued interest payable
Deferred revenue
Deferred bond revenug
Customer security deposits
D to other governmental units
Dhee oy other funds
e 1o component umits
Compensated absences
Diie within one vear
Due in more than one year
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Met Assets

Total Liabilitics and MNet Asseis

The notes 1o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

JUNE 30, 2011

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-Type

Activities Activities Tastal Component Units
8 1452894 S 12512 § 1465406 % 2045983
346,022 1EO.390 456,412 -
20,427 - 20,427 -
1,199,904 342,412 1,542 386 11194

- - - 17,933

B6,5945 . 86,945 -
387,731 693 382 108,113 2B5.654
90276l 11,641 914,402 all 692

- - - IZRAIT

40,591 5807 46,398 -

BOT 280 2325344 3222624 2,04% 406
1984 518 BA461.301 AA45818 6,328 122
5 17319133 % 11962799 § 29281932 % 11,027,401
279202 313,395 92,597 226316
110,205 17,237 127.442 6, 38T
172,515 15,481 187,996 19,426
THRI60E - TR1.008 33,060
55,178 - 55,176 14,488

- 110,390 110,390 -

226,040 - 226,000 -
TG40 902,7al 914 401 60,697
328417 - FIRA1T -
129,115 15,989 145,104 25422
55,335 6,853 62,188 43,955
166,089 332637 499,326 583322
9,231,184 3464017 12,695,201 2,341,825
11,547,086 5178760 16,725,846 3,994,593
3325755 6,985 991 10,315,746 5.053.823

“ s - 635,072

2,446,292 {205,952 2,240,340 1,343,513
3,072.047 3,784,039 12.556.086 7032408
173019033 % 1962799 § 20781932 § 11,027 401

EXHIBIT |
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted Cash
Investments
Taxes receivable
Accounts receivahle
Mates receivable
[Due from other funds
Dee from primary government
[nze from other povernmental units

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Aceounts payable and accrued liabilitics
Accrued payroll and related liabilities
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds
Due to component units
Due to other governmental units

Toal Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
MNonspendable
Restricted
Commitied
Assigned
Unassigned
Tatal Fund Balances

Taotal Liabilities and Fund Balances

Tatal Fund Balances

CITY OF NORTON
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUND
JUNE 30, 2011

Special

Ceneral Revenue Total
B 145289 % - % 145258
44 609 A3 346,022
10,427 - 20,427
100115348 - 1.011.348
188,616 - 188,616
- 6,945 BO.94S
1,054,601 - 1.054 601
27,171 60,560 387731
§ 40990666 %  A48918 % 4548584
5 236833 % 42369 % 274,202
01,925 18,250 110,205
970,268 - 970,268
11,641 133,439 145,080
346.817 - 346817
226,00H) - 226,000
1,883,484 194,088 _ 2.077.572
- 314,685 314,685
505569 - 505,564
L0613 {59,835) 1,650,758
2216182 254,810 24712
F 4099666 5§ 448918 5 4548584

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of

nel assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current
financial regources and therefore are not reported in the
eovernmental funds, net of accumulated depreciation

Crther long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and therefore are nod reported in the governmental funds

Other liabilities are not required to be paid out of current financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the povernmental funds

Long-term liabilities are not dee and payable in the curmem
period and therelore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Met Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

£ 2471012

12881798

40,591

(223.481)

{9.397.873

£ 57372047

EXHIBIT 3



CITY OF NORTON
STATEMENT OF REVENLES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total
Special  Governmenial
General Revenue Funds
REVENUES:
General property taxes § 23833552 % - % L3E315%2
Cber local taxes 4,822,364 B 4822 364
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses 5.007 . 5,007
Fines and forfeiteres 94,147 - 94,147
Revenue from use of money & properly 36,622 2463 30085
Charges for services 389,903 2417 410,520
Miscellaneous 60,176 . A, 176
Recovered costs 16,754 16,754
Intergovernmental 1496419 B44.580 _ 2.340.999
Totel Revenues 9304944 B6T.600 10172604
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Ceneral povernment administration 1116081 - 1116081
Judicial administration 349229 - 349229
Public safety 2,261,460 36.578 2298038
Public works 2,191,672 . 2,191,672
Healih and welfare 110,023 1.151.957 1,261,980
Education and transfer to schonol 1,504,736 - 1,804,736
Parks, recreation and cultural 481,551 - 483,551
Community development 715,216 - 725216
Debt service:
frincipal retirement 7684450 - 7,684,450
Interest 376,273 - 376,273
Total Expenditures 17,102,691 1,198,535 _ 18,291,226
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (7.797.747) (320.875) _ (8.113,622)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Sale of surplus 15,928 . 15928
Sale of real property - - .
Loan procecds 7615839 - 1.615839
Ingurance recoveries 13.285 - 13,285
Oiperating transfers in - 230,000 230,000
Chperating transfers out (230,000} - (230,000
Total Cther Financing Sources (Uscs) 7.415,052 230,000 7645052
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (382.695) {90,875) {473,570}
FUND BALANCE AT REGINNING OF YEAR 2.598.877 345,705 2,544,582
FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR $ 2216182 3 254830 § 2471012

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,

EXHIBIT 4



EXHIBIT 4

2
CITY OF NORTON i
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Met Change in Fund Balance Governmental Fund: $ (4735700
Amounts reported for governmental ctivities in the statement of

activities are different because:
Giovernmental funds report capitol outlays as expenditures. However,

in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over

their estimated useful lives as deprecintion expense. This is the

amount by which depreciation excecded capital outlay in the

current period. (366,717)
Revenues in the stalement of activities that do not provide current

financial resources are niot reponed a8 revenves in the funds, (93, 740)
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in governmental funds

but the payment reduces long-term lishilities in the statement of net

assets. This is the amount of net principal payments 184,450
Some expenses reported in the stotement of activities, such as

compensated absences and acerwed interest, do nod require the use

of current financial resources and therefore are not required os

expenditures in governmental funds. (42,563}
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities § (T90144)

The notes 1o (inancial statements are an integral part of this statement. I8



CITY OF NORTON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROFRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Business-Type Activities
Proprietary Funds
Water &
Sewer
—Operation.
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents b 12512
Restricted cash 11,3490
Receivable, net 342,422
Duee from olher funds 11,641
Due from other government units 693,382
Deferred hond expense 5807
Land SRE.600
Construetion in progress 1,736,744
Capilal asscts, net __Ba61301
Total Assets % 11,962,799
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 33305
Accrued payroll and related liabilities 17,237
Accrued interest pavable 15 481
Deterred revenue .
Customer security deposits L1350
Dee to ather governmental units -
D to other funds K761
Compensated absences 22,842
Long-term liabilities -
Diue within ane vear 332.637
[Pue in more than one year 3464017
Total Linbilities 5,178,760
MET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, nel of related debt 6,089 00|
Restricted -
Unrestricted __{205,952)
Total Net Assets 6,784,039

Total Liabilities and Met Assets

$_11.962.799

The notes w financial staternents are an integral part of this statementl.

EXHIBIT 5



EXHIBIT &

CITY OF NORTON
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENLES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FLUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

PROPRIETARY
FUNDS
Water & Sewer

Operation
OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges For Services:

Water:
Local b 511,674
Non-local 271,961
Total Water 1.083.635
Sewer:
Local B9, 104
Mog-local 246203
Tatal Sewer 1,142,307
Total Charges for Services _ 2,225.942
Miscellanéous:
Installations and tap fees 12,485
Penalties 49,213
Other L 48549
Total Miscellaneous 11247
Total Operating Revenues 2,336,189

OFERATING EXPENSES:

Personal services 508,126
Fringe benefits 183,844
Contractual services 063 866
Other charpes 73,532
Fent 6,000
Depreciation 247 446
Purchase of water 112,622
Amortization -
Tatal Qperating Expenses 2305368
Operating Income (Loss) (3%, 17

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Cirant income 2,451,203

Waste water flow income 530,000
[nterconnect expense (21,055)
Interest expense _193.540)

Total Mon-Operating Revenues (Expenses) o 2ERAG0Z

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 2827423
NET ASSETS - JULY 1, 2010 . 395a616
MET ASSETS - JUNE 30, 2011 5 6,764,039

The notes to financial statements are an integral of this statement ]



EXHIBIT 7

CITY OF NORTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS -
ALL PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2011
PROPRIETARY COMPONENT
FUNDS UMIT
Water & Sewer Norten Industrial
Operation Development Autharity
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from customers L9 2302056 § S6HE, 203
Cash payments 1o suppliers for goods and services (L3601, 156) [18%,742)
Cash payments to emplovees for services . 670630y -
Met Cash provided by (used m}
Operating activities 7250 3ThAG1
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES;
Increase {decrease) in customer deposits 4,075 .
Cemtribation - City of Noron - 40518
Increase {decreasa) i due to other funds : 348,245 5
Met Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing
Activilies L xz 320 540,518
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES:
Construction in progeess (3,875,102 .
Acquisition of capial sssets {R40, 049y {139,044y
Proceeds from 1ssuance of debt 1,033,246 -
Contributed Capital-Grant Revene 2668710 -
[ntereonnect expense (21,055) -
Principal paid (155.096) [408.524)
Interest paid (95836 (109056
Met Cash provided by {used in} capital and related
fitancimg activities (365, 182) (B30.674)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received - 59513
et cash provided by (used in) investing activities - 9513
Met Increase (Decrease} i Cash and Cash Equivalents (142812} 2o 18
Cash and Cash Equivalents a1 Beginning of Year 65.514 LI37 88T
Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2011
Ulnrestricied 3 12,512 1,407,705
Restricted 110,390 -
Cash and Cash Equivalens sl End of Year ] 122,902 § 1,407 705
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
FROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating ncome (loss) 5 (539079 & 228,143
Adjustments
[reprecigtion and amoetization 247778 217,297
OFER 17.360
Chunges 1n assets and liabiligics:
[Inerease) decrease in prepaid expense (3,5%07)
{Inerease) decrease in accounts recervable {34,151 1,245
Imercase (decrease) in accounts payahle (104,1368) {157%
Increase (decrensa) i accrued habilities 955 -
Increase (decrease) in compensating absences 1,584 -
Incrense (decrease) in deferred rent - ) {fif, 1A}
Total adjustments 139.42% 148,315
Met Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities b3 70250 % 376461

The notes (o Ninancial statements are an integral part of this statemens. 21



EXHIBIT 8

CITY OF NORTON
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2011
CDBG Virginia
Revolving Public Drug and  Flag Rock TOTALS
Loan Assistance  Gambling  Lighting  June 30,
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2011
ASSETY
Cash P 215357 3% TieTd % 10314 % 2069 5 301413
Receivables (Met of Any Allowance For
Uncollectibles):

Accounts - = = = -
Mote receivable B6,045 - - = B, 945
Prepaid items - - - - -
Due from other funds - - - 2 -
Due from other governmental wnits:

Commonwealth of Virginia - i, 560 - - i), 3641

TOTAL ASSETS $ 302302 % 134233 5 10314 % 2065 § 448918
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABILITIES:

Accoums payable b - F 42369 % - % R

Accrued liabilities - 18,280 - - 18,280

Due to other funds et - 133,439 - - _ 133439

Total Liahilities - 194,088 . - 104,088
FUND BALANCES;
Monspendable - - - .
Restricted - - - - -
Committed

Economic development 302,302 - - - 02,5302

Law enforcement - - 10,314 - 314

Parks and recreation 2065 2069

Assipned - - # - -

Unassigned - (39.855) - - (59.855)
Total Fund Balances 102,302 (59.855) 10314 2.069 254,830
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 302302 5 134233 % 10314 $ 0% 5 448918

The notes to financial statements are an intepral pant of this statement. 22



CITY OF NORTON
AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash

NET ASSETS

Amaunts held for social service clients

b

EXHIBIT &

Special
Welfare
Fund

12.344

12344

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stalement. 23



EXHIBIT 10

CITY OF NORTON
AGENCY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

Year Ended June 30, 2011
Special
Wellare
Fund
Additions
Client receipts b 7877
Total additions 7877
Deductions
Payments for clients 3.909
Total deductions 3509
Change in net assets 3,968
Met assets - heginning of year 8376
Nel assets - end of year £ 1234

The notes 1o Gnancial statements are an integral part of this statement, M



EXHIBIT 11

CITY OF NORTON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 34, 2011

Nuorton
Industrial
Morton City  Development
Schools Auvthority Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § G3IB2TR % 1407705 5 2045983
Restricted cash 5 H 5
Invesiments - - E
Receivable, net 729 (465 11,194
Prepaid cxpense - 17,933 17,031
Drue from primary government 328,417 . 328417
Due from other governmental units 285,654 - 2R5.054
Dee from other funds 60,692 . GA92
[reterred bond expense - - -
Capital assels, non-depreciahle 65,900 1,983,506 2,049 406
Capital assets, depreciable, net 1,736,927 4,491 195 6,228,122
Total Assels § 3116597 % 7910804 § 10027401
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and acerued liabilities 174,435 51,881 226316
Acerued payroll and related liabilities 646,387 - 046,387
Accrued interest payahle 11,877 7,549 19,426
Dreferred revenue - 33,160 33,160
Deferred Bond revenue 14,488 - 14,488
Customer security deposits - - -
Due to other governmental units - - -
Due to other funds 60,692 - £l 2
Compensated absences
[ue within one year 215,422 - 25422
Due in more than one year 43,955 - 43,955
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one vear 86,219 497,103 583,322
e in more than ome year 680,094 1.661,731 2,341,833
Total Linbilities 1,743,569  2,251.424 3,994,993
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 737956 4,315,807 5,053,823
Restricted 635072 - 635,072
Uinrestricted - 1,343,513 1.343.513
Total Nel Assets 1,373,028 5,659,380 T.032 408
Total Liahilitics and Met Assets F 3116597 5 TOl0804 % 11,027401

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 25
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CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e e wen
June 30, 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) as applied o government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the government's accounting policies are described below.

A Eeporting Entity
As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America these financial
statements present the City of Norton and its Component Units. The Component Units discussed in Note B
arc included in the City's reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial
relationship with the City,

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Component Units are legally separate organizations for which the clected or appointed officials of the
primary government are financially accountable. The primary government is financially accoumtable if it
appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and is able o impose its will on that
OTZanization.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the financial activitics of the Norton Industrial Development Authority and
the Norton City School Board are included in these financial statements as discretely presented Component
Units. Included in the Nerton City School Board Compenent Unit are the School Operating. School
Cafeteria, Textbook, and Health Insurance Premium Funds. The Norton Indusirial Development
Authority's financial statements may be obtained by contacting the Authority a1 PO, Box 303, Norton,
Virginia 24273,

The financial acuvities of the following organization are excluded from the accompanying financial
statements for the reasons indicated:

Norton Redevelopment and Housing Authority - The City Council appoints the Board of Commissioners;
however, the City does not have responsibility for the fiscal matters of the Authority, including
authorizations of budgetary appropriations, funding of operating deficiencies, control over or use of surplus
funds, responsibility for debts and control over the collection and disbursement of funds.

C. Financial Reporting Model

GASB issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and Management s Discussion and Analvsis
— far State and Local Governments (Statement) which established requirements and a new reporting mode]
for the annual financial reports of state and local governments. The Statement was developed to make
annual reports easier to undersiand and more useful to the people who use governmental financial
information 0 make decisions. Because of the significant changes in financial reporting under the
Statement, implementation was phased in (based on the size of the government) beginning with fiscal year
ended 2002 (for larger governments). As part of the Statement. there is a new reporting requirement
regarding the local government’s infrastructure (roads. bridges, waffic signals, etc.) This requirement
permits an optional delay for implementation to the fiscal year ending in 2008. The City implemented the
basic model in fiscal year 20035 and completed the implementation of the infrastructure-related portion of
the Statement by fiscal year 20008,

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statemenis

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the stalement of net assets and the statement of changes in
nct assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its
component units.  For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-rope activities, which rely 1o a significant extent on fees
and charges for suppor.

27



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e e N ==
June 30, 2011

l. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The siatement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment.  Program revennes include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to mecting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported imstead as gereval revenues,

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund
The General Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures applicable to the general operations of the
City which are not accounted for in other funds,

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than those derived from
special assessments, expendable trusts or dedicated for major capital projects) requiring separate
accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action. Special Revenue Funds
consist of the Virginia Public Assistance, CDBEG Revolving Loan Fund and Drug and Gambling Funds and
Flag Rock Fund.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The water and sewer operation find provides drinking water, maimains the facilitics necessary 10 provide
this service, and provides maimtenance to the sewer lines and pump stations. Its primary revenue source is
user charges and fees,

Fiduciary Funds account for assets held by a governmental unit in a trustee capacity or as an agent or
cusiodian for individuals, private organizations. other povernmental units, or other funds. These funds
include Agency Funds,

D. Basis of Accounting

1 Cigvernmental Funds

Governmental Funds vtilize the modified acerual basis of accounting under which revenues and
related assets are recorded when measurable and available to finance operations during the year.
Accordingly, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when
billed. net of allowances for uncollectible amounts, except that property taxes not collected within
45 days after year cnd arc reflected as deferred revenues.  Sales and utility taxes, which are
collected by the State or utilities and subsequently remitted to the City, are recognized as revenues
and receivables upon collection by the State or unlity, which is generally in the month preceding
receipt by the City. Licenses. permits, fines and rents are recorded as revenues when received,
Intergovernmental revenues, consisting primarily of Federal, State and other grants for the purpose
of funding specific expenditures, are recognized when eamed or at the time of the specific
expenditure. Revenues from general purpose grants are recognized in the period to which the
grant applies,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

[, Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Expenditures, other than interest on long-term debt, are recorded as the related fund liahilities are
incurrcd.  Intercst on long-term debt is recognized when due except for interest due on July 1,
which is accrued.

2 Proprietary Funds
The accrual basis of accounting is used for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund and the
discretely presented component unit, Norton Industrial Development Authority, Under the accrual
method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are earned. while
expenses are recognized in the accounting period in which the related liability is incurred.

3. Fiduciary Funds
Arency Funds wtilize the modified accrual basis of accounting.

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting
The following procedures are used by the City in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

1. Prior to March 30, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating and capital
budget for the fiscal vear commencing the following July 1. The operating and capital budget
includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.
£} Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resclution.
4. The Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the category level. The

appropriations for each category can be revised only by the City Council. The City Manager is
authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within governmental departments, however, the School
Board is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within the school system's categories.

A Formal budgetary integration is emploved as a management control device during the vear for the
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds (except for the School Fund), The School Fund is
inteprated only at the level of legal adoption.

. All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAF).

7. For all City units, appropriations lapse on June 30,

&, All budget data presented in the accompanying financial statements is the revised budger as of

June 30, 2011.

F. Encumbrances
The City utilizes encumbrance accounting in its govermmmental funds., Encumbrances are recognized as a
valid and proper charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which a purchase order, confract. or
other commitment 15 issued, Generally, all unencumbered appropriations lapse al year end, excepl those
for capital projects.  Appropriations for capital projects are continued until completion of applicable
projects, even when projects extend more than one fiscal year, Open encumbrances at fiscal yearend are
included in restricted, committed. or assigned fund balance, as appropriate.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Confinued)

G,

H.

Investments

Investments, consisting of repurchase agreements and deposits in the State Treasurer's Local Government

Pool are stated at cost which approximates market,

Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and eguipment are valued at historical cost or estmated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available, Donated assets are valued at their estimated fair value on the date donated.

Repairs and maintenance are recorded as expenditures; renewals and bellerments are capitalized.

Depreciation for Proprictary Fund fixed assets has been provided over the following estimated useful lives

using the Straight-Line Method:

Enterprise
Water and Sewer Fund
Water/Sewer System 35
Buildings 35
Improvements other than buildings 20-35
Infrastructure 30-50
Equipment 3-18

Allpwance for Uncollectible Accounts

The City caleulates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data and, in certain
cases, specific account analysis. The allowance amounted to approximately $298 805 at June 30, 2011, and

is composed of the following:

General Fund:

Allowanee for uncollectible property taxes FI81.135
Allowanee for uncollectible garbage fees 11432
Total General Fund § 192,567

Water and Sewer Fund:
Allowance for uncollectible water and sewer fee billings $106.238

Total Water and Sewer Fund 106,238
Total Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts b 298,805

Cash Eguivalents

For pu.rpusn:s of the statement of cash flows, the Water and Sewer Fund considers all highly liquid
investments {including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased w be cash

equivalents.
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1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K. Fund Equity

Fund balances, presented in the governmenial fund financial statements, represent the difference between
asscts and liabilities reported in a governmental fund. GASB Statement No. 34, Fund Balance Reporiing
and Cravernmental Fund Tvpe Definition, establishes criteria for classifying fund balances into specifically
defined classifications and clarifies definitions for governmental funds., The new standard has not affected
the total amount reported as fund balance but has substantially changed the categories and terminology
used to describe their components. GASB Statement No, 54 reguires that fund balances be classified into
categories based upon the type of restrictions imposed on the use of funds.

Beginning with the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2011, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 54, This
Statement provides more clearly defined fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the
constraints placed on a government's fund balances more transparent. The following classifications
describe the relative strength of the spending constraints:

« Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either {a) not in
spendable form or (b} are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The City has classified
Prepaid Items as being Nonspendable as these items are not expected to be converted 1o cash or are not
expected to be converted to cash within the next vear.

s Bestricted: This classification imcludes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the
resources either (a) cxternally imposed by creditors {such as through a debt covenant), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other povernments, or (b} imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

o Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
{ordinance or resolution) that was emploved when the funds were initially committed, This classification
also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically commuitted
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

» Assigned: This classification imcludes amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for a
spectfic purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Council
or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the City Manager through the budgetary
Process,

#Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund, The Unassigned
classification amounts are available for any purpose. Positive Unassigned amounts are reported in the
General Fund only. The Unassigned classification alse includes negative residual fund balance of any
other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts.

Beginning fund balances for the City’s governmental funds have been restated to reflect the above
classifications.

The City would typically use Restricted fund balances first, followed by Committed resources, and then

Assigned resources. as appropriale opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend
Unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds.
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il DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits

All cash of the City and its component units is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia
Security for Public Deposiis Act, Section 2.2-4400 ¢t. seq. of the Code of Firginia, or covered by federal depository
insurance.

Investments

Investiment Policy:

In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable law, including regufations, the City permits
investments in U, 5. Treasury Securities, U. 5. agency securities. prime guality commercial paper. non-negotiable
certificates of deposit and time deposits of Virginia banks, negotiable certificates of deposit of domestic banks,
banker's acceptances with domestic banks, Commonwealth of Virginia and Virginia Local Government Obligations,
repurchase agreements collateralized by the U. 5. Treasury/Agency securities, the Virginia State Non-Arbitrage
Program or other authorized Arbitrage [nvestment Management programs, and the State Treasurer's Local
Government Investment Pool (the Virginia LGIF, a 2a-7 like poal),

Concentration of Credit Risk:
Deposits and investiments held by any single 1ssuer that exceeded 5% are as follows:

First Bank & Trust 7%

Custodial Credit Risk:

As required by the Code of Virgindg, all security holdings with maturities over 30 days may not be held in
salekeeping with the “counterparty™ to the investment transaction.  As of June 30, all of the City's investments are
held in the Treasurer’s office in the City's name.

The above items are reflected in the financial statements as follows:
Component Units

Primary
Government School MDA
Dieposits and investments:
Cash on hand 5 1,150 by - b -
Deposits 1.920,668 638,274 1.407.705

Investments 20,427

§ 1942245 S 638.278 51407705

Statement of net assets:

Cash and cash equivalents § 1465333 5 638278 § 1407705
Investments 20,427 2 Z
Restricted cash and cash eguivalents 456 485 - . -

51,942,245 $ 638,278 §_1.407.705

Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of certificates of deposit.
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3 PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE

Property is assessed at its value on January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January
1. Taxes are payable twice a vear on May 15 and on October 13, The City of Norton bills and collects its own

property taxes.

4, NOTE RECEIVABLE

Note receivable from Norton Industrial Development Authority (NIDA) in the amount of $280,000 - loan dated
February 25, 2002 with a ten year term and annual interest rate of 0% for the first two years and 1% per vear.
thereafier. Annual payments of $29,563, including interesi, begin February 25, 2002 with the remaining balance to

be paid February 25, 2012.

e

DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

Commonwealth of Virginia:

Local sales tax
Shared expenses
Commumication lax
E-911 1ax

Other

School funds
Welfare funds

Total Commonwealth of Virginia
Wise County:

Coal haul road taxes
Court fines/transfer fees

Total Wise County

Norton Industrial Development Authority

Component
—Unit-
Primary School

Ciovermment Board Total
§ 155705 % - 5 185705
23.798 - 23,798
18,379 . 18,379
6,667 - 6,667
4467 - 4467
- 285.654 285,654
60.560 - _60,560
269.576 285654 3535.230
63,564 - 63,564
9,158 - 9158
72,7132 - ¥z, 732
45,433 - 45.433
§ 235654 5 _ 673385

Total Due From Other Governmental Units 5 387,731
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fi. INTERFUND OBLIGATIONS
School Board
Primary Government Component Unit
Due From Due To Due From Dhue To
General Fund:
School Operating Fund § 18401 5 346817 b3 - 5 -
Virginia Public Assistance Fund 133439 - - -
Water and Sewer Fund 902,761 11.641 - -
Total General Fund 1.054.601 358,458 - -
School Operating Fund:
General Fund - - 346817 18,401
Cafeteria Fund - - 18,686 42,006
Health Insurance Fund - - - -
Total School Operating Fund - - 65,503 60.407
Sehool Cafeteria Fund:
School Operating Fund : ; 42,006 18686
Health Insurance Fund - - - -
Total School Cafeteria Fund - - 42,006 18 686
School Health Insurance Fund
School Operating Fund - - - -
Total Health Insurance Fund - - - -
Virginia Public Assistance Fund;
General Fund 4 133,439 - -
Water and Sewer Fund:
General Fund 11,641 902,761 - -
Totals $1,066,242 $1,394.,658 § 407,509 $ 79093
7. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS
The following is a summary of changes in depreciable capital assets:
Balance Balance
FRIMARY GOVERNMENT 712010 Additions Deletions 63072011
Buildings S 1504980 £ - b3 . 5 1.964.951
Improvements other than buildmgs 1,494,432 28900 - 1,523,332
Infrastructure 9 969,691 23,550 - 0,993,241
Equipment 3,105979 194,614 169,552 3,321,041
Equipment special revenue 141,378 . - I41.378
Tenuney m Commaon-School Board T.616,96 - . 76016561
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable 24,383,392 247,064 164,552 24,460,504
Lesz Accumubated Depreciation For:
Buildings 1,285,000 27,393 . 132,593
Impeovemnents other than buildings 1016215 24 564 1,041,079
Infrastructere 7270856 167,164 - 7438020
Exjuipmient 2,207,186 242601 164,500 2285287
Equipment special revenue 91,901 3028 - 04929
Tenancy m Common-Schoo] Beard 152,339 152,339 . 304,678
Tinal accumulated deprecmtion 12,023,497 617389 164, 500 12 476,386
Total Capital Assets, depreciable net S 12159895 § (300323 S 5082 5 11984518
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7. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Balznce Balance
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 72010 Additions &/30:2011
Oither Costs
Bond lssue Cost k3 56,079 3 . b3 56,079
Less: Accumulated Amortization {12538 2960 (13.488)
Met Bond [ssue Cost 5 43,551 % {2,960) b3 40,591
Component Unit-School Board
Building § 3500844 b3 - b3 3.500L844
Improvements other than building 16776 - 716,776
Equipment 632,023 &.140 640,163
Tortal Capital Asscrs, depreciable 4 849 543 2140 4 857783
Less Accumulated Depreciation For:
Building 2.366.42 F0.640 2417075
Improvements other than building 245,638 27714 273,352
Equipment 374,324 56,105 430,429
Total Accumulated Depreciation 2986391 134,465 3,120,836
Total Capital Assels, Depreciable, Met b 1.863,252 b {126,315) 5 1,736,927
Component Linig - NIDA
Building 13 3649 039 % 26,571 b 6,395 610
Equipment 384,133 - 3K4.133
Less Accumulated Depreciation (2.076,470) {212,078) 2 283 543)
Total Capital Assets, Depreciable, Net 3 4.676,702 5 {185,507) b 4.491 195
Business Type Activities
Building % 256,454 3 - % 256,454
Improvements other than building 8.653,337 3,854,900 12,508,237
Equipment 240,971 84,279 925,250
Tonal Capital Assers, depreciable 9,750,762 1939179 13,685,941
Less Accumulated Depreciation For;
Building 248226 434 248,660
Improvements ather than building 4058857 237167 4,200,024
Equipment 674112 9,244 683,356
Total Accumulated Depreciation 4981195 247,445 5,228,641
Toral Capital Assets, Depreciable, Met b 4,769,567 5 3691734 5 B.461,301

35



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2011

T CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

The following is a summary of changes in non-depreciable capital assets:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30, 2011
Land § 897280 3 = b - S 897280
Total Capital Assets, non-depreciable § 897280 % - & = 5 897280
Component Unit — School Board July 1, 2010 Additions Deletions June 30. 2011
Land £ 65000 % - 5 - 5 65,900
Constructions m Progress - - - -
Total Capital Assets, non-depreciable  § 65900 § - 8 - & 65.900
Component Unit - NIDA
Land § 1870983 S 112523 § - § 1983506
Total Capital Assets, non-depreciable  §_ 1870983 & 112523 § = 5 1983506
siness T July 1, 2010 Additions LiOng Jupe 30, 2011
Land §  SRE.A00 b - § . § 588,600
Construction in Progress 1.363.684 3.172.190 (3,799,130) 1,736,744
Total Capital Assets, non-depreciable  § 2,952 284 § 3172190 £ (3.799.130) § 2325344
g LONG-TERM DEBT
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
NE OB ATION BON
Year
Ending
June 30, Principal Ititeresi Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 § 65,000 § TOEM & 60540 & 5418 5 - § 225,000
2013 71,000 68,226 63,191 2,768 . 225,000
2014 0,000 65,250 . - - 225,000
EHIH] 75,000 62020 . - 7,500,000 225,000
W16 75,000 9,626 - - - -
2017-2021 44 5,000 242,502 . - = -
2022-2026 360,000 119.750 ‘ : - -
2027-2031 130,000 6.500 . = - .
2032-2036 - - - - - -
2037-2041 - . - 5 = :
2042-2040 2 2 3 . . .
2047-2051 - . . . i
Totals 5 1490000 S 695306 $ 123,731 5 B.186 § 7504000 S 900 000
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8. LONG-TERM DERBT (Continued)
BLUISTMESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
Year CGINERAL OBLIGATION BOMDS
Erding Water Improvernent Boad Water Facilities Bond Lewer Facilities Bond Waler Facilibes Bond
Jupe 30, Principal Lnleresl I'rincipal Irilerest Principal Interusl Principal Inleres)

2012 s 2 60 5 45,019 5 1,900 3 40,579 5 2181 H 1549 3 2DR2I6 5 -

20013 KL 44,103 14,538 16 044 2372 7448 a 2

2014 45,0043 43,127 18,204 18276 2349 352

008 45,000 41648 |5.503 35,577 2467 7.183%

016 45000 34,550 18,633 37847 el | 7149 - .
2017-2021 e, D0 14621 45,355 177,043 14,571 401 . -
20222008 330,000 B&.331 118,384 123,038 17.902 0698 - .
27-2031 175.000 9900 149.42) 122579 21,995 26604 - -
2032-2036 . . 187044 B33%8 27,005 21575 * 5
20872041 - - 234141 38259 332 15.59% - *
43048 ‘ . Jo.64d 1.00% 40,793 7.807 . .
20473051 < . . . 16414 ] . -

Total 5 S66.270 5 471499 5 G0dl46 5 THOS03 5 IS3TE2 8§ 1TA49L  § 836 S -

—_— e = e _ _—— _—

Year GEXERAL OBLIGATION

Endirg Sewer Facilivies Bond

humne 30, Principal Inleniest

2012 5 75719 e

2003 =N

034 75,719

03 el |

Ak 75715
20172021 178503 -

2002-2026 178,585 =
A0 202867 -
20332036 . Z
20372041 -
0422046 - .
047.2081 Z =
Total 5 1 438,652 5
Balunce Additions/ Payments/ Balance
0701-10 Proceeds Reductions 06-30-11
Business-Type Activities:
Gieneral obligation honds § 2,709,896 £ 1.053.246 S (118,096) 5 3,705,046
Deferred gain of refunding 601,048 - {3, 160) 56, HER
Revenue honds 37,000 - 137,000) .
CPEB I 7,360 17.360 - 34,720
Accrued vacation 19,748 28619 (25,525) 22842
2,904,052 1.099325 {183.781) 1.819.49
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds 9,236,731 7.500.000 {7.623,000) 9,113,731
Capital lease 71.582 115,839 (61.449) 125972
OPEB T9.085 79,085 . 158,170
Accrucd vacation 157.932 181,378 __ (154 8600 184,450
9,545,330 71.876.302 A7.839,308) _9.5R2,323
il $12,449,382 § 8,975,527 $(£.023,090) $13.401,819
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5. LONG-TERM DERT (Continued)

Chanees in Other Long-Term Debr;

The following is a summary of other long-term debt transactions of the City of Norten for the vear ended June 30, 2011

Compensated Abzences

Governmenial Propricty
Fund Fund

Types _ Twpes

Pavahle at June 30, 2010 ¥ 157932 b 19,748
Additions 181,378 28619

Reductions {154,860} {25.525)
Payable at June 30, 2011 5184450 i 22,842
Amaount

Dustanding

Government Propriety
Activilies Fund Types

Details of Long-Term Indebledness:

General Obligation Bonds:
The City refinanced an existing Water Improvement Bond Debt which was originally
issucd for $1.5000,000 and a Community Facility Loan on a fire truck which was
originally msued for $750,000.  The wval refinanced bond issue was for a total of
S171,008 which included bond isswe cost and finance charges totaling 379,008,
The City started making payvments of prncipal and interest October 1, 2004 and
continues making pavments annually October 1 of each vear therealter until the bond
is pmd. The actual interest rate on the wtal bond issue is 4.2938%, Final installment
of all unpaid principal and imerest shall be due and pavable in 24 vears on October 1,
2028,

O123731 966,270

F1.730,000 Public Improvement Bond, Scries 2007, is payvable o VML ACo, with
weighted average interest of 4.2155% over the life of the bond. The toral hond issue
was for 51,803,566 which incleded 3 premium of 573,566 and bond issue cost of
$52.954. Repayment of the principal is scheduled ro begin on August 1, 2007 and
continue annually until paid in full. Interest i scheduled to he patd semi-annually on
August | and February | beginning with the first principal payment.  The final
installment of unpaid principal and interest shall be due and payable in 20 years on
August 1, 2027, 1. A%, HH)

£7.500,000 General Obligation Refunding Bond issued November 17, 2010 payable

tor the Linited States of America with an interest rate of 3.00%. Interest is paid semi-
annually beginning in July 1, 2001, Principal is due at maturity on January 1, 2015, 7.500.000 -
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
Emerprise Funds:

General Obligation Bonds:

31,514,370 General Obligatien Sewer Bond, 15 payable w the Virginia Resource
Authority, with interest a8 zero percent,  The amount of principle advances on the
bond ol £1.514,370 at June 30, 2011, Repayment of the principle is schedule in 40
cqual semi-annual installments of $37.859 payable on Jupe | and December 1,
beginning December 1, 2000, Final payment 13 due June |, 2030 - | 438, 652

$1,000,000 Water Facilities Bonds issued October 9, 2002, payable to United States
of Amernica, USDA Rural Development, with interest at the rate of 4.3% per annum.
Accrued imterest onlv is pavable on October 9, 2003. Monthly installments of
combined principal and interest of $4.540 are payable beginning on November 9.
2003 and continuing on the %th of cach month thereafier until paid in full. Monthly
payments are to be applied first 1o interest secrved to such payment date and then 1o
principal. The final installment of all unpaid principal and interest shall be due and
payable in 40 vears on October 9, 2042,
- Q08,146

S190,000 Sewer Facilities Bond issued June 6, 2008 payable to Unites States of
America, USDA Rural Development, with interest at the rate of 4.10%. Monthly
insiallments of Combined principal and inerest of 3810 are payahle beginning July 7,
2008 and continuing on the 7 of cach manth thereafier untl paid in full. Monthly
payments are applied fiest w interest sccrued o such payment date and then to
principal. The final installment of all unpaid principal and interest shall be due and
payable in 40 vears on June 7, 2048, . 183,762

$2.160.000 Water Facilities Bond Series 2011 issved March 30, 2001 payable w
Unites Seates of Amenca. USDA Rural Development, with interest at the rate of
275%. Interest only is payable on March 28, 2012 and March 28, 2013. Monthly
inszallments of Combined principal and interest of 87344 are payable beginning
April 28, 2013 and continuing on the 28" of cach month thercafier until paid in full
The amount of principle advances on the bond total $208,216 at June 30, 2011. The
final installment of all unpaid principal and interest shall be due and payable in 40
years from commencement. . 208 216

Toral Long-Term Deln $ 9013731 5 3,705,046
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R, LONG-TERM DERT (Continued)
nit - School Boa
Annual requirements o amortize long-term loansbonds and related mterest are as follows:

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Years General Obligation
Ending Bonds VPSA Retirement
Jupe 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 § 50000 5 13005 § 35019 % 8581 § 1200 § -
2013 55.000 10,328 36.031 6,769 800 -
2014 35,000 7.522 37.096 4.904 = -
2015 60,000 4.590 38.216 2984 = .
2016-2020 60.000 1.530 39,393 1.005 - -

Toals § 280000 § 36975 § 185755 § 24243 § 2000 § .

Changes in Long-Term Bonds/Loans:

The following 15 a summary of long-term bonds/loans transactions of the City of Norton Component Unit - School Board for
the year ended June 30, 2011:

GENERAL OBLIGATION

Gieneral
Obligation Literary Retirement VPSA

Bonds =~ Fundloans _Pavable ~— _Pavable ~— _ Totals
Bonds/loans payable at June 30. 2010  § 325000 § 20000 § 3200 § 219813 S 568013

|ssuances -[- -0 0 -0- -0-
Retirements {45.000) {20.000) {(1.200) __(34,058) (100.258)

Bonds/loans payable at June 30, 2011 § 280000 § £ 3 2000 S _I85755 S 467755

The following is a summary of other long-term debt transactions of the Component Unit - School Board of the City of Norton for
the year ended June 30, 2011:

Compensated Absences OPEB
Component Unit- Component Unit-
School Board _ School Board
Payvable at June 30, 2010 §57.811 149,279
Additions 45,049 149,279
Reductions (38.315) -
Payable at June 30, 2011 $63,173 $ 298,558
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. LONG-TERM DERT (Continued)
Component Unit - School BoardConrineed)

Details of Long-Term [ndebledness:

Amount
General Obligation Bonds: Outstanding
5495000 General Obligation School Bond issued May 12, 2005, payable in
annual installments beginning July 15®. 2006 and continuing until July 15,
2015, See accompanying amortization schedule for payment details. The
bond has variable interest rates ranging from 3.1% (o 4.60%,.
280,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 280,000
Retirement Costs:
$£350.622 Early Retirement Costs, pavable over 11 vear period with monthly
installments of 5,095, first installment dus in the year ending June 30, 2000
2000
Virginia Public School Authority:
$613,165 interest subsidy loan dated December 01, 1995 payable to the
Virginia Public School in semi-annual payments. Principal and interest
payments are due on July 15th and interest only payments are due on January
15th. The Loan carries an interest rate of 5.1% through January 15, 2003, For
payments from July 15, 2003 (o Janwary 15, 2006 the applicable rate is 6.1%.
The payments from July 15, 2006 w maturity at July 15, 2016 is 5.1%
185.735
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM BONDS/LOANS & 467,755
Component Unit-WIDA
Annual requirements to amortize long-term debt and related interest are as follows;
Years
Ending __City of Norton Powell Valley Mational Bank TOTALS
_June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interes
2012 §  BA.D44 b 870 F 410,159 5 7757 5 497103 § 78,727
2013 -(1- -0- 429 377 58,739 420277 38,739
2014 (] -0- 449,035 38,981 449,035 38,981
2015 (- -0- 469,701 18,315 469,701 18315
Thereafter =0- -(1- 313,718 1.241 313.718 1.241
Totals §_ 86,044 $ 870 $2.071,890 £ 195,133 $2,158.834  §196,003
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8 LONG-TERM DEBT {Continied)

Changes in Long-Term Debt:

The following 15 a summary of long-term debt transactions of the Industrial Development Authority of the City of
MNorton for the vear ended June 30, 2011:

Powell
Cily WValley
af National

Marton Bank Totals
Mortgage loans pavable at June 30, 2010 % 115353 $2452,005 8§ 2,567,338
Bommowings - - -
Retirements {28,409} { 3R0L115) {408.524)
Mortgage loans payable at June 30, 2011 $ B6.0944 $2.071890 § 2138834

Principal Balance

Drctails of Long-Term Indebtedness:

at June 30, 2011
Maortgage Loans Payable:

Powell Valley MNational Bank - $3.900.000 mortgage loan dated 3/3/04;
secured by substantially all real property and revenues of the Authority. The
loan bears interest at a rate of 4.3% pavable quarterly begmning 6/3/04.
Principal payments are due quarterly beginning 6/3/06 with the balance due

on 3/3/16.
2.071.800
City of Norton - $280.000 loan dated 2/25/02 with a ten year term and annual
interest rate of 0% for the first two years and 1% per vear, thereafter, Annual
payments of $29.56298 including interest, begin 2/25/05 with remaining
balance to be paid 2/25/12
86944
Total Mortgage Loans Payable at June 30, 2011 i 2,158,834
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CLAIME, JUDGEMENTS AND COMPENSATED ABSENCES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

In accordance with GASE Statement 16 "Accounting and Financial Beporting Principals for Claims and Judgments
and Compensated Absences”, the Ciry has accrued the liability arising from outstanding claims and judgments and
compensated absences,

City employees earn vacation and sick leave at various rates depending upon the number of years of service. No
benefits or pay is received for unused sick leave upon termination, Only 15 days of unused vacation leave can be
carried over to the next fiscal vear. Employees eam vacation leave according to the following schedule:

A A167 days per month or § days each year if the employee has been with the City
less than 1 vear.

B. .833 days per month or 10 days each vear if the employee has been with the City
for as long as 1 year but less than 10 years,

C. 1.25 days per month or 13 days each vear if the emplovee has been with the City

for 10 yvears or longer,

Employees of the Department of Social Services accumulate vacation and sick leave in accordance with the Virginia
Department of Social Services Personnel Manual,

At June 30, 2011, the City had outstanding accrued vacation, sick and personal leave of 5171343 in the
Governmental Activities and outstanding accrued vacation leave of $21,219 in the Water and Sewer Fund. The City
had outstanding acerued payroll taxes of 513,107 in the Governmental Activities and $1,623 in the Water and Sewer
Fund related 1o the accrued leave.

COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
All twelve-month classified, certified, administrative, and supervisory emplovees of the School Board earn twelve
{12} vacation leave days per year. Such vacation leave may be accumulated to a maximum of twenty-five (23) days,

All certificd and administrative employees (professional staff) of the School Board eam three (3) days of personal
leave per year. Unused personal leave days may be transferred 1o sick leave days,

All cerified and administrative employees of the School Board may earn one sick leave day per month worked each
vear based on the number of contracted days. (180-200 day contract = 10 days, September — June; 220 day contract
= 11 days, August — June; 240-260 day contract = 12 days, July-June). Such personnel shall be able to accumulate
an unlimited number of such days. Upon retirement from the Norton City Schools under the VRS, all professional,
administrative and support staff (full-time employees) are eligible to receive sick leave funds as follows;

For accumulated days on June 30, 1998:

0-50 S12.00/day
S1-200 824,00/ day

For additional days accumulated afier June 30, 1998, the rate will be $45.00/day. Most recent sick davs
accumulated must be wsed first.

At June 30, 2011, the School Board had outstanding accrued vacation, sick and personal leave of $64.447 and
54,930 of acerued payroll taxes related to the accrued leave.
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1. FUND BALANCES—GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

As of June 30. 2011, fund balances are composed of the following:

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds

Monspendable:

Prepaid ems 3 - 5 — 5 —
Restricted:

Law Enforcement =

Community Development - — ===
Committed:

Law Enforcement - 10,314 10,314

Parks and Recreation - 2,069 2069

Planning & Development — 302,302 302.302
Assigned:

Law Enforcement 194,187 — 194,187

Fire Department 6,372 - 6,372

Public Works-Streets 120,054 -- 120.054

Parks & Recreation 1,400 - 1.400

General Properties 160,765 -- 160,763

Planning & Development 22,791 —- 22791
Unassigned 1.710,613 (39,835} 1.650,758

Total fund balances $2.216,182 £ 254,830 §2471.012

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available,
the City considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of
commitied funds, then assigned funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless City Council has provided
otherwise in its commitment or assignment actions.
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

A

Flan Description

Mame of Plan: City of Norton, Virginia, Virginia Retirement System {VRS)

Identification of Plan: Agent and Cost-Sharing Multiple-Emplover Defined Benefit
Pension Plan

Adminstering Entity: Virgima Retirement System (System)

All full-time, salaned permanent {professional) emplovees of public school divisions and employvees of
participating employers are automatically covered by VRS upon employment, Benefits vest after [ive years
of service credit. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and their
emplover 15 paying into the VRS, Members are eligible to purchase prior public service, active duty
military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded VRS service as credit in their plan.

VRS administers two defined benefit plans for local government employees — Plan 1 and Plan 2:

¢  Members hired before JTuly 1, 2010 and who have service credits before July 1, 2010 are covered
under Plan 1. Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at age
63 with 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit, They may retire
with a reduced benefit as early as age 33 with at least 10 years of service credit or age 50 with at
lzast five vears of service credin,

s  Members hired or rehired on or after July 1, 2010 and who have no service credits before Julyl,
2010 are coverad under Plan 2, Non-hazardous duty members are eligible for an unreduced benefit
beginning at their normal Social Securily retirement apge with at least five vears of service credit or
when the sum of their age and service equals 90, They may retire with a reduced benefit as carly
as age 60 with at least five yvears of service credil.

« Eligible hazardous duly members in Plan 1 and Plan 2 are eligible for an unreduced benchit
beginning at age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 25 vears of service
credit. These members include sheriffs. deputy sheriffs and hazardous duty employees of political
subdivisions that have elected o provide enhanced coverage for hazardous duty service. They may
retire with a reduced benefit as carly as age 50 with at least Ave years of service credit. All other
provisions of the member's plan apply.

The VRS Basic Benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a percentage of the
member’s average final compensation multiplicd by the member’s total service credit. Under Plan 1,
average final compensation s the average of the member’s 36 consecutive months of highest
compensation. Under Plan 2 average final compensation is the average of the member's 60 consecutive
months of highest compensation. The retirement multiplier for non-hazardous duty members is 1.70%. The
retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is 1.85%. The reurement multiplier for
eligible political subdivision hazardous duty employvees other than sheriffs and jail supenintendents is
1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the employer. At retirement, members can elect the Basic Bencfit, the
Survivor Option. a Partial Lump-Sum Option Payment (PLOP) or the Advance Pension Option. A
retirement reduction factor is applied to the Basic Benefit amount for member election the Survivor Option,
PLOFP or Advanced Pension Option or those retiring with a reduce benefit,

Retirees are cligible for an annual cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) effective July 1 of the second calendar
year of retirement. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%; under Plan 2, the COLA cannot exceed
6.00%. During years of no inflation or deflation, the COLA is 0.00%. The VES also provides death and
disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, assigns the authority to establish
and amend benefit provisions to the General Assembly of Virginia,

The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for VRS, A copy of the report may be obtained from the VRS Web
site at hitps www varetire.org PdiPublication 201 0-annual-report.pdf or by writing to the System’s Chief
Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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1. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN{Continwed)

B. Funding Policy

Flan members are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia (1950), as amended, to contribute 5% of
their compensation toward their retirement. All or part of the 3% member contribution may be assumed by
the employer. In addition, the City and School Board are required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary o fund participation in the VRS using the actuarial basis specified by the Code of Virginia and
approved by the VRS Board of Trustees. The City contribution rate for the fiscal vear ended 2011 was
13.71% of annual covered payroll for the City's government employees and 5.00% for City of Norton
School Board non-professional employees.

The public school divisions professional employees contribution rate for fiscal 2011 was 8.93% of covered
payroll for year ended 2011, This amount represents 100% of the current vear contribution. The amounts
related 1o the previous three vears are as follows:

Required Percentage
Professional Contribution Made
2011 352,060 100%
2010 433,201 100
2009 514373 100

The required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2011 for the non-professional employees of the City
of Morton Schools was $12.864. This amount represented 100% of the current vear contribution. The
amounts related o the previous three vears are as follows:

Reqguired Percentage

Non-Professional Contribution hade
2010 S 12864 100, 0%

2010 12,979 100n0

2009 12,398 100.0

C. Annual Pension Cost

For fiscal year 2011, the City’s annual pension cost of 5428372 was equal to the City’s required and actual
contributions. The FY 2011 reguired contributions were determined as part of the June 30, 2009 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. In fiscal vear 2011, the City School Board's
annual pension cost for the Board's non-professional emplovees was $12.865 which was equal to Board's
required and actuarial contributions. The required contributions were determined as part of the June 30,
2009 actuarial valuation using the eniry age normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions as of
June 30, 2009 included {a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) (b) projected
salary increases ol ranging from 3.75% to 5.60% per year for general government employees and 3,50% 1o
4.75% for employees eligible for enhanced benefits available to law enforcement officers, firefighters and
sheriffs and (¢} 2.530% per year cost-of-living adjustments. Both {a) and (b} included an inflation
component of 2.50%. The actuarial value of the City of Norton's assets is equal to the modified market
value of assets. This method uses technigues that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market
value of assets over a five-year period. City of Norton's unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level percentage of payroll on an open basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30,
2009 for the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) was 20 years,
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11. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

. Annual Pension Cost{Continued)

Trend Information for City of Norton

Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
City:
6301 b 428537 100% 3 o-
B30 365,000 100 -
6/30:/09 361137 100 -
|33 Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of Jupe 30, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date the plan was 72.7% funded for the City and
was 110.3% funded for the School Board non-professional employees. The City's actuarial accrued liability
for benefits was $14.938,851 and the actuarial value of assets was $11.475.914, resulting in an unfunded
actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) of $3.482.937. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was 53,176,357 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 109.6%. The
School Board's Non-Professional Employee's actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 51,600,634 and
the actuarial value of assets was 51,765,589, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of
$(164.935). The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $260.117
and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was (63.4)%.

Schedule of Funding for the City and School Board:

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial UAal
Fiscal Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Annual as % of
W ear Assets Liability Liability Ratio Covered Payroll
Ending (AVA)_ _(AAL)_ (UAAL)  (2)(3) Payroll (4)/ ()
City:
B3010 $11.475.914 £14.938.851 $3.482.937 T2. 7% 83,176,337 10,6 %
B30/0% 11.526,774 13,086,643 1,559,870 BE.O% J083.436 50.6%
6/30/08 11.444.087 12,133,371 698 254 94.3% 2,776,006 24 8%
School Board:
Non-Professional Employees
G010 % 1,765,589 § 1600634 £(164,955) 110.3% S 260,117 [ 63.41%
&/30/09 1,805,641 1,483,622 (322.01%) 121.7% 233,957 (137.6)%
/30008 1.541.349 1.397.580 (443.769) 131.8% 233925 (189.7)%
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12. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASBE) has issued its Statement No. 43, dccounting and Financial

Reporting by Employvers for Posiretivement Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions.

The Statement establishes

standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other post-employment benefits {OPEB) expense and
refared liabilities in the financial statements. The cost of post-employment healthcare benefits should be associated
with the period in which the cost occurs, rather than in the fure years when it will be paid. The City adopted the
requirements of GASB Statement No. 435 during the vear ended June 30, 2010. Recognition of the liability
accumulated from prior years will be phased m over 30 years commencing with the 2010 liability.

The City meets the requirements to use the alternative measurement method and elects 1o use the alternative

measurement method.

Annual Other Post-Emplovment Benefit Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

For the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2011, the City's annual OPEB costs of $456,728 for governmental activities and
$34.720 for business-type activities, respectively, were equal to the Annual Reguired Contribution {ARC),

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPER obligation
Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase in net OPEB obligation
MNet OPEB obligation-beginning of year

Met OPER obligation-end of year

Governmental Business-type School
Activities Activities Board

! T9.085 17.360 174311

79,085 17360 174 311

- - (25,032}

79083 17,360 149,274

79,085 17,360 149,279

b 158,170 34,720 298558

The City's annual OPEB cost for povernmental activities, the percentage of annual OPEE cost contributed to the
plan, and the net OPEB obligation are as follows. The City's first year for implementing GASB No. 45 was June

30, 2010,
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12.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFTTS (Contintied)

Percentage of
Annual OPEB

Fiscal Year Annual OPER Cost MNet OPEB

Ending Cost Contributed Obligation
June 30, 2011 5 79,085 0% % 158,170
June 30, 2010 79,085 0% 79085

The City's annual OPEB cost for business-tyvpe activities, the percentage of anmual OPEB cost contributed o the
plan. and the net OPEB obligation are as follows. The City’s first year lor implementing GASB No. 45 was June
30, 2010,

Percentage of

Annual OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Met OFPEB
Ending Cost Obligation
June 30, 2011 5 17.360 %% 5 34720
June 30, 2010 17.360 0% 17.360

The School Board's annual OPER cost. the percentage of annual OPER cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEER obligation are as follows, The City’s first year for implementing GASE Mo, 43 was June 30, 2010,

Percentage of

Annual OPEE
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Net OPEB
Ending Cost Obligation
June 30, 2011 b3 149,279 (R 3 208,558
Jume 30, 2010 149,279 [ 149279
Funding Status and Funding Progress
['he funding starus of the plan as of June 30, 2011 was as follows:
Governmental Business-type Schonl
Activities Activities Board
Actuanal Accrued Liability (AAL) £ 577,884 % 126,852 S 18253884
Actuanal Value of Plan Assets - - 1BR.072
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liabality (UAAL) 577.884 126,852 1,637,812
Funded Ratio (Actuarial Value of Plan Assets/AAL) 0% 0% 10,301
Covered Payroll {Active Plan Members) 2.677.645 387.776 2915517
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 21.58% 21.58% 56,18%
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12.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the fuure, Examples mclude assumptions about future employment,
mortality. and healthcare cost trends, Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required coniributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liahilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by
the employer and the plan members) and include the type of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the emplover and plan members to that point.  The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of shori-lerm volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assers, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

The entry age normal cost method was used w determine labilities under the alternative measurement method.
Under this method, future benefits are projected and the present value of such benefits is allocated from date of hire
to date of eligibility. Active employees are assumed to retire at age 62 which is the historical average age of
retirement for employees of the City, Active employees age 62 or older who have qualified postemployment
benefits under the plan are assumed to retire in the first projected year, A healtheare plan that includes both retirees
and active employees contains a blended rate. The rate used in the calculation is the age-adjusted premium less the
contribution from the retiree or blended premium.  The acuarial assumptions for the City included:  inflation at
2.3% and an investment rate of return of 2.5%. The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums is
based on the Geizen model promulgated by Society of Actwaries. Using the level percent of payroll method, the
payroll growth rate has been set to the inflation rate. Life expectancies at the calculation date are based on the most
recent mortality tables published by the National Center for Health Statistics. The 2004 United States Life Tables
for Males and the United States Life Tables for Females were used. Life expectancies that include partial years
wiere rounded to the nearest whole vear. The caleulation of postemployment health insurance coverage for each year
15 based on the assumption that all participants will live uneil their expected age as displayed in the mortality tables.
The probability that an employee will remain emploved until the assumed retirement age was determined using non-
group specific age-based wrnover data provided in Table 1 in paragraph 35b of GASB Statement 45. The unfunded
accrued liability is being amortized over 30 years. The remaining amoriization period at June 30, 2011 is 28 years.

FPlan Description

The City provides post-cmployment medical coverage for retired employees through a single-employer defined
benefit plan. The City may change. add or delete coverage as they deem appropriate and with the approval of the
City Council. The plan does not grant retirees vested health benefits,

A retiree, eligible for post-retirement medical coverage, 15 defined as a full-time emplovee who retires directly from
the City and is eligible to receive an early or regular retirement benefit from the VRS, Emplovees applyving for carly
or regular retirement are eligible to continue participation in the Retiree Health Plans sponsored by the City.
Employees at the City are allowed to stay on the plan until death of the employee or eligibility for Medicare
coverage. The emplovee pays 100% for spouse or dependent health care insurance premiums.
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12. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)
Funding Policy

The City currently funds post-employment health care benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. During fiscal year 2011,
the City had not designated any funding for the OPEB liability,

13. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met.  Under the modified accrual basis of accounting. such amounts are
measurable, bul nol available. Deferred revenue totaling $970.268 is comprised of the following:

Deferred Property Tax Revenue:

Deferred revenue representing uncollected tax billings not available for funding of current expenditures totaled
£970.268 at June 30, 2011,

14, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

In regard to litigation involving the City of Norton, Virginia, there are two pending lawsuits in which the potential
for loss payment exists. At this time no specific valuation has been determined in regard to either lawsuit,

15. SURETY BONDS
Amounl
Fudelity and Deposit Company of Maryland - Surety
Faithful Performance of Duty Schedule Position Bond:

*Barbara Muir, Treasurer $ 200,000

Judy Miller, Commissioner of the Revenue 3000

Carlos Noaks, Sheriff 30,000
Faithful Performance Blanket Bond:

The above Constitutional Officers' employees - 350,000 for each loss 30,000
Hartford Accident and Indemnity Company - Surety:

Barbara A. Muir. Treasurer 100,000
Selective Insurance Company of America;

Emest W, Ward, City Manager 200,000

Fred Ramey, Assistant City Manager 100,000

Mayor and Ciry Coungil 10,000

All City employees - blanket bond 10,000
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland - Surety:

All Morton City School Employees - blanket bond 10,0063
Selective Insurance Company of America;

Roger Ramey, Direcior (Social Services) 00,000

Elizabeth Fleming, Office Manager [ 00,000

All social workers L0, 000

All employees other than Director, Office Manager, and social workers Q00

* The coverage in respect to the Treasurer of the City does not apply to pecuniary loss sustained by the City

by reason or in consequence of the failure of the Treasurer to faithfully and fully discharge according to
lawe the duties pertaining to said position,
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16,

LEASE OBLIGATION

The City of Norton has two capital leases outstanding at June 30, 2011.

The City leases a 2007 Volvo backhoe from Koch Financial Corporation. The lease was entered into on February &,
2008 and extends to February 8, 2013, The lease calls for monthly payments of $1.724 with the first pavment

beginning on March 8. 2008.

A summary of the present value of future minimum lease payments, net of interest, is as follows:

Tane 30, 2012 $ 19,439
June 30, 2013 13528
Total $ 32967

The Civy leases a 2011 International truck from Zions First Mational Bank, The lease was entered into on MNovember
29, 2010 and extends to June 20, 2015, The lease calls for yearly pavments of $25.97% with the first payment
beginning on June 20, 2011.

A summary of the present value of future minimum lease payments. net of interest, is as follows:

June 30, 2012 5 21,710
Tune 30, 2013 22,707
June 30, 2014 23,750
June 30, 20135 24,839

Total 5 93.005

ENCUMBRANCES OUTSTANDING

Dutstanding encumbrances of the proprietary fund types are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements
as a reservation of retained earnings, in keeping with the fund rvpe's measurement focus. However, Encumbrance
accounting is emploved as an extension of formal budgetary integration for the City's governmental tvpe funds, At
June 30, 2011, certain amounts which were restricted, committed, or assigned for specific purposes have been
encumbered in the governmental funds. Encumbrances included in governmental fund balances are as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Encumbrances Included in:

Restricted Commired Assigned

Fund Fund Fund
Balance Balance Balance
General Fund for Capital Assets b3 - s - £ 475,006
General Fund for Other Purposes _ - . _M563
Tetal Encumbrances g - o - § 505,569
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7. ENCUMBRANCES OUTSTANDING(Continued)

COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD

Encumbrances Included in:

Restricted Committed Assigned
Fund Fund Fund
Balance Balance Balance
School Fund for Capital Assets 5 - b3 - b -
Sehool Fund for Other Purposes 13,163 - -
Tuotal Encumbrances 313,163 5 - b -

18, RISK MANAGEMENT

The City maintains general liability. auto and workers' compensation insurance coverage through the Virginia
Municipal Liability Fool. Other insurance coverage (including fire. equipment, police lizbility, public officials
liability and workers' compensation and accidental death on volunteer fireman) is maintained through commercial
insurance companies,

19. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

A prior period adjustment, in the amount of $80,251 was made o the School Fund 1o adjust beginning fixed assets.
During the vear ended June 30, 2011 the School revised their fixed asset reporting to accurately reflect the
established capitalization threshold of $3.000 and provide a more accurate record of assets in service,

A prior pericd adjustment in the amount of 5155947 was made to the General Fund to adjust beginning
accumulated depreciation as it relates to the "Tenancy in Commeon™ asset with the School Board,



CITY OF NORTON
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended June 30, 2001
Variance
Ovriginal Final Favorahle
Busyret Budget  Actwal  {Unfavorable}
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GENERAL FUND:
Revenue From Local Sources;
CGeneral Property Taxes:
Real property taves SL620eal % 162066] 51605340 3 (15313
Real and personal public service corparation
PrOpey tExes 215,000 215,000 184,044 (30856
Personal properly taxes d15 T 415,700 443 611 2101
Muochinzry and 1ools taves R D) B, 00D H,a83 14483
Penaliies and mlerest 29,500 SO0 50043 20,545
Tatal General Propeny Taxes 2366861 LI66861 2383553 16451
Oiher Local Taxes:
Laocal sales and use taxes 2,000,000 A000000 1 8E2 301 {117,699}
Lty taes. - - 126,570 126,570
Husiness license taxes 863,600 #63 800 TE353 190,247}
Communecation foxes 350,000 350,000 223287 {126,713}
Mator viehiche hoenses - s - 5
Bank stock taxes B3 DO 85,000 126,034 41,034
Becosdanan taxes 30,000 30,000 30,256 G256
Tabacco taxcs Al 200 165 {35
Hatel and motel room Laxes 170000 170,000 195,071 25,071
Restaurant food raxcs 1,125 000 1125000 I, 126,150 1150
Coal read improvemen) laxes 1 60000 160,000 233047 62047
Franchise licenses tax - - 0 E[H]
Cipgaree tax 140.0G0 140,000 LR, 100 (31,9007
Tatal Oiher Local Taxes _AST3 00 4923800 4,823 364 [101,.436)
Permits, Privilege Fees And Repulatory Licenses:
Ammal licenses 1,000 | 1313 313
Pertnits and azher licenses 6,760 6,760 3,504 13,0663
Total Permits, Privitege Fees and
Fepulatory Licenses 7,760 .360 5007 (2.753)
Fines amil Forfeitures 105,000 1(ES GG Q4,147 ___iI0EST)
Revenue From Use OF Money And Property:
Beevenue fram wse of money Ay {HK) A0 0 11084 (2R.9146)
Fevenes from use of property 31,250 31,250 25,538 (5.712)
Temal Bevenue From Lse of Money and
Property 71,250 71250 366 (34.62H)
Charges For Serviees:
Court cosl 5,000 5,000 BIO 14,390
Attomey fees 5,000 5,000 5,18% 1 8%
Charpes for manitation and waste removal 370,500 3T 500 366,667 (3433
Charges for parks and recreation 28 000 28D 17437 (10,563)
NELD revenue récovery 30,000 30,000 - {30,000y
Total Charges for Services 38 500 438 500 IRG505 (48,597)
Miscellancous Revenue:
Miscellaneaus ___ 4B 150 A6, | 50 G0, | 76 14,026
Tetal Miscelioneous 46,130 da,150 adl?a 14036
Revovered Costs:
Fecavered Cost - Schoal Board 20,000 20,000 T804 (17,105
Cost allocation plan - Warer and Sewer Fund 13,550 13950 13,930 -
Cost alleeanion plan 6,350 6,130 - [6,350)
Tatal Recovered Costs A0,30K) LI 16,734 [23.546)
Total Revenue From Local Sources 7.999,621 R I ] ] (191686

The nates o financal stalements are an inlegral part of this statement.

SCHEDULE
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CITY OF NORTON
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
Year Ended June 30, 2001

SCHEDULED
Pape 2

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budgel Budget Aciual {Unfavorabile)
Hevenwe From The Commanwealth:
Mon-Categerical Aid:
Motor vehicle carners’ taxes 5 1000 % 35000 % 36T40 8 1,740
Litter arant - - 5010 5910
Mabile home itling taxes A.000 R ] 19,201 4,201
Reduwction of state aid (20 168} (20, 168) {24 056) {34R8)
Bolling stock taxes 15,000 13,000 10248 4,244
Total Mon-Categarical Aid 34,832 34,837 57043 22.211
Categorical Aid:
Shared Expenses:
Bheriff 137 675 137,675 141,299 3624
Commissioner of the Revenue 6,277 56,177 61,687 5410
Treasurer 56,819 Sa k9 61,310 4491
Medseal examiner 300 300 . {3000)
Registrarclectaral board oo 32,000 29,244 _{2,756)
Tatal Shared Expznses 283,071 283,071 203540 10,4659
Oher Categarical Aid:
Law enforcement jrrant 228 497 228 497 321514 (4,581
Emergency medical services 114 (R ERER] 2045
MY Grrone 1,500 1,500 17,168 15.0A%
Street and highway maintenance H95, (06 695,000 123030 28,930
Financeal assistance 1o the ars 5, (R 5,000 5,004 -
DMBE highwall project - . 200441 204410
Parks & recreation - - 250 250
E-911 funding 40,000 40,000 39,139 (861}
Hafe route to school - - 8609 R
Fire pragrams fund 20,000 20,000 61,363 41,3463
Tatal Caher Caegorical Add 991,097 0op0a7 1102 561 111,464
Total Revenue From the Commanwealth 1,309,000 1,349, 0600 1,453 144 144,144
Revenue From The Federal Government:
Payment in lizu of property taxes Jd G0 34,000 28444 [5,556)
[epariment of Emergency Management . . 4,123 4,023
Justice assistance grants 30,000 30,000 10708 (19,2923
Tetal Revenue From The Federal Governmen: 64,000 G4 000 43275 {20,725y
Other financing sources
Insurance recoverics 70 EREY 13,285 6,283
Lusin proceeds - - 7615839 TA15 R
Sale of Real Property - - - -
Rale of Surplus 2,500 2,500 15538 13,428
Tatal other firancing sources 9500 0,500 THd5 052 7635 552
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 9382121 938121 | 6,249, 996 1567 875
SPECIAL REVENLE FUNDS:
Virginia Public Assistance Fund:
Revenoe From Local Sources:
Revenue From Use of Money and Property:
Revenue from use of money 5 i 5 5
Totl Revenwe From Local Sources .
Revenue From The Commonwealth:
Categorical Aid:
Wellare;
Add o dependent children 28927 23927 3,454 5,567
Foster care 12.40% 12,409 11,630 {779
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SCHEDULE L

Page 3
CITY OF NORTON
COVERNMENTAL FUNDS
RUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YVear Ended June ), 2011
Variance
Orriginal Final Favornhte
Budget Muilper Actual {Unfavorahie)
Cieneral admingstration Tor financial assictasee £ 1485 %€ 111486 % 107,255 & 4.231)
Commanity services LERAEEY O Eh,5d4 [3.501)
Supplemental income assistancs for e sged,
blind and disablsd 17,718 17,708 27,383 waTS
Emphaymemt srvices 15T 2457 5 G5 ERL]
Driy care 10,057 16,057 9,606 [.451)
Otther parchased services 4,743 4743 B, AR5 62,142
Diirecs social services ) k45 9 245 B (9,245
Geneal el 1,048 1,048 515 (523)
Eiterpency services N s = G
View=Welfare reform - - - "
Tocad Caregarical Al 34,124 384024 3450978 {34,146}
Total Revense From the Commoerweziih 384,124 SR, 124 3454078 134, 144}
Revenue From The Federal Governmeni:
Categorical Aid:
Welifare:
Aid i dependane children 26,045 I0,04% 30,524 4474
Faster cane 1592 15,922 11238 0916
Gieneral admanistration for financial assistance 195 34006 1958, 36 219,584 JETR
Sapplemnental income assisiance for the aged.
hlind and disshled - - - -
Emiplosment services LR 3,562 E.197 40634
Dy Care 52,007 52,077 264671 (254406
Other purchased senvices 27,247 17,147 [ ) 143,770
Diirect social services 148,055 145 0:55 - (148,055)
Emergency nssisiance TS a4 - i Tas)
Special revenue = . = b
View -Wellare refonn < = H o
ARRA S - 53T 5,371
Tatal Revenue From the Federal Goverminen) 472,082 472,652 454 607 2| &0
Otlver financing sources
Transfers fram general fund 230,000 23O 230,000 ) .
Tenal vaher financing sources 2HLA00 23D 30,000 B
Teanl Verginia Publv Assstande Fusil 1,087,106 LOET, 106 1074580 (12,526)
Drug amd Gambling Investigative Funda:
Bevenue From Local Sources:
Restitution 1o low enforcement == L 2G17 20617
Tatal Revenss From Local Sounces — . i 20617
Taotal Revemes Doag and Gambbing
|evestigative Fund - - 0,617 2607
Rewolving Loan Fund:
Revenue From Local Sources:
Revense from ase of money and propeny - - 2463 2403
Taital Revenue From Lecal Sourees . - raod _2463
Total Bevalving Loan Fund - - 2463 2443
Farmers Market Funad
Revenue From Local Sources:
Miscellzmeous S - = =
Total Revenss From Local Sowces A . * -
Tatal Flag, Rock Lightmy Fumd - - - .
TOTAL SPECIAL REVEMUE FUMDS 1,087,106 1,0RT 1 1057, i1 10E.554
GHRAND TOTAL - REVENUES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 5 104637 § 10480327 § IB04T6eSH % 7578429

=



L5

Weir Wrim:  OWieiZ  DOGHIT Lges; s e
Zorel 0% [CINT] ol UBTLIACAY S (1)
ioTF [ oo ] iz rompa dxadiaug
legzel LEE'6d [ RT] ouler |ammio fratiny
SR ABYIL)
FAL TR T ih YT Auippng
ETTHEET T
(Laaral ToE1LE TN [Ty UANUAIA U EOIA Y (|
Cilr wmoal o Gedni oy el (i Bas ea woignq) i)
[5¥9'rd SEPIL COR'LS UE°LE b ]
[LF'ES) LE0'ES [ it e AU A51 WL 331AI3S jO BRI M
ImAINAIN] PUT BO[I38AIE
(sl [T [T aiel SENAIIE Iy FIE 2dy 0]
= - . e RILAR I3 PUT IR Py
sz BeF 1T LEsis| Lin'iel Bnmsdap 3 S,
L5Em LY WETRT mazy
PRI PR Y ] T
i FTLaT] . s spony Tusuadear Aol sy
igas) TR S00L o pamuna e
TESELL RETTIV 00T ML (L e g tesundap sy
IJOATUE ) NI | PER puBEBRIGHEY W]
1hyawg ng
TR L uITer R I BITERHSY ([BHR] (1]
(r#Tle1) PR FF "N Y KU1 & PR )

slansony w I am s

FHOT S0 TOL [TCHTT [T TN R

[T rig'n: OTE [T weaj Al pui iy
1g1v°s) Sip0E ORE QOST FNELNEI R0
TR e 10Z aiiaie oci'oee My
L1441 15T 00N (LI LIROD IR o gia|
riE 9aT| 0051 ooE'l LINES ATUTIR UG
FOLERE (<54 [ oo [T TR
L L ]
LI UTERY [FIpe)
199 I HINTTE] HTNTTN] R Y BRI LR e ]
il HEw BOURL [ WIS A PG (TR
[T T e oo o antay
LYE L b [ e ool RIS UIE g eaman ]
LEUBEIE[ 0 parey)
BILIT FRE TG oag el DOLTRD ORI SRR (BT U [ESUSL) (i)
[TEa'ETD THE A wowarl e Anjoni iy
I¥E'S 1 0OF'E oy Faissaany| swg
lea'e) 1L0ET] [ TN ]] gL el amuiLg 0 i
s LLE'SEY 06161 as il anineal |
oGS + 000 S E wanmely
{PF2F) FELPEL aesarl ags'oc| ANLIBANY B 0 AR
055 05 e O0EE 00’57 Ny uapusdagug
(res’s) PEO'LE O08'Lk DOg'Lr uctssagasl puw (e
ShEL SOLGe [T o0'ee et 23150
$B5'TI TI00E DOL'LIE BOCLIT iaBna £a)
SHMPESSIMUPY (FINENL] e Nabuary
=] £ mWeif  § L00L § TiooE § ey Ay
ldhagpapislary
caimapy LY
SR TYEINETD
INTRRNIATT AEVinind
T iaesEEn) ey Wdpey  Bipew
HqrIzang veg rubiagy
zweuny
VEOE ‘0 Sunf papuyg sway
TINANIE ROSMHYAWO0D AdYLIINg
SN TYININSHIADD
NOLWON 40 4101

tafieg
ERBLIEL FH



o Terear 108 6LT wanr ) e EOSESY yE eL

. [T (533 [C3 0 Aeeagny procdiay m spiausisy

rmagr

LT T OB 000°5T OETT SEPIASLICY R 0]

Ty [ 00T [T A spmsiay ) pee seumd sadopdig

. and's [T . SuORNI) ROyeE
(E90g) o9 T 0l T I

- ouo'n ol o) -y

HUBI (SRR

T3 HRE LIF LO0"aaE [ ¥ ORI QU0 SN (Ui
e LPESE i (T tnced tusiiiing
[9ERD) SERLLI L0190 A5L'HE spunn s per dsues wo|masay
(wa5°01) 61 HE o09'EB | a09'ca | FnrwuaERy
UOPNIEY PN
TEIN) PUR BOLEASIY TR
£ 9el LR LTINS [TINI] ocEnng (o
1Al FITERL T L G PIOCG [SOG78 01 Iaair,)
= Ise ive 19 gy, ) Amenma ) 3mdE BEERCROY ) BT )
A D
1L90°el) [F T T e SERETN A P IR
{BoETIv o ar (=540 [T5 g B ETeGRARI M A
00i'T . i Dot FEmap) ada] - 00NNy
- il ool 001" S |y iR, )
il 00§ 0% AU o4 00 UBHINGIAND, )
. g ot [ #aunsey famfug umeig og uoaniuee,
o0y - ane [ TS ARARY 0 ULCRREG
2 o0 on's o' NG, 00 I 11 uOneEn )
TR L5 ' - Apsapga ap gangad s Al
. g ooz 00007 i Aonathe vy
L x 5t a5 P i)
ENMMALSG RO MR) AN,
T TOTEL Geic Ry proeg o @iy
ERIBEIRIY [N PUR IR (s
[ BOE Y ({7473 [T7573 WA IR i ]
gy
SRITRE AL PO Ty
Y T 161 T POLINL T ST T8 1 T, NPT )
I T T T ™ TH T} i ranas
SEpURGI) PuE TN [PAUST) J0 SIUTIEE
BEODL 1araLy [T [T [EADUSY ST, PO UDGEINES [0,
THETF F0561  GOORFL 0005k s sy
[R0LET) 19L71LT Gno'rE OUIHFE uoiaa)jad aEnjay
HEB'E LFEn 005 'cl LAY Suumags eod e g
EANCUIY AETAY AN U Y
el TEESLR T nOlLnd| oL sl sypEsapsy pue saipug
siaang ‘sdeariliy po sausuaierpy g
G0d'E - [Ty [T Funszund pus sy |
(589'n8) SRELL 000'sT BO05E [RADIAL 200 U iy
£za'o1) EIr'ES 005'L8 o§'f sy aang
(17w £ Q005 05 sluieip aory
lopazzl) FETOIT HLROL'T [ FEMIPS P sailpg s e mgdigg
BESS § SL'se i STFIL § RFIL 5 IR IR, s Fies i
Op
Pur dpg ey Tesgl) o ot
BT ]
L T Wighg  wlpen
gLy (L] iwundiagy
j—.lh
1107 "op sunf papeay Jes)
AVHIHIE KOSTHYAWOD ANYL3DaNna
SUNNA TYANANNEIADD
NOLHON A0 ALID

4 #itg
1 3IHIE




19

- a R ar_:_.__@_:u SR pun
samiipuailxz jaae aouren pan wip suciesdodde
P Samunnns Fiaunuy Janso ‘amuasa o s iy

SOEEET = SAMEILNIUA TFAA KLl
PIT' 16T FII'bED snpdins arad a0
SRR Ny ueng) swonwadondde 1ay

WRSELEr & Timow) g ARl s £isuiy 328pNG « S3EN TSR 110 PUE SapuadEs
FIAD SR0TEE "u.ﬁ_u:n:_m RE TR TR RS .u..._ mv.._—axw

Wee 1628) 8 BITITSEI & GRCGICIL § IPEEIICH 8 GONA INTNNEIADD
AUVIIHAD - SIHOLMNTIXNE = TYLOL ANYUD

[T SEEERI] CEIRERE] CUNET SO ANNAATE TVIIF45 TYLOL

= - - ' spung asedisasug furguen pus S e,
B . 3 E [Rmies

IPUN4 ATy FIawWwan g

[EEH] BLEOE ¥ . vpunj aaneiusaan) Sujguien pue S e

[ETCTR] BLEQE - - Ajagee 21pgng
spung asprEnaasy Sequen pee Eneg

TR LRETTEIL S01LE00] GOATLARTY g amiglsEtiy ngng vudey, @R
Msaral 61l IGTLEG | GLLLEDE asja A B e el
U LEG 1501 LERNE SprLEyl SEALEFY RII0SEIR] 240 (B0 ]
N $OLSEISITT 5 ORI 5 20Ul 0§ uisEpe e poogar|a s

TERIAIAE TR
S| 4, pu gIEIL
U SIEEIIETY 3)|qN] BTy

RN ANNIATH

Iretaltl 5 IB9EICLI 3 EFlCELOl 3 GSCO96 5 AN TYHINTD TVLRL
- HIOIET O000ET . Oomoec sazras Bunsurug ssqn o)
- HHOEE Y OET 00 OCE I R G sgsuRL

- : - . UM L ey 0L SEpsun |
Eaen Aurwru S

(L §Er L) [EINTE] ] ] N3 Wep [EIOL
TrrnLel TLCOLE - B Tsasnm)|
[Gap" 5 L) DEPEa‘L P FLR PEEPED pfizay

BIALIG 1G]

leni'Tl BITEEL TIETTL [T suFIdopEaa] AN pue Funr, (e
: . =il E sy jupcesy
. s sy HIEF UOESSRUWS ) Aoday af Loy
i LIUFRES DFELL FHrEes W - tun suzuodinos of Loanguue
= [t oIz (il AU 3E] USRI §IC]E O] UoAIGAnUN T
b 756’1 9T T5a'T ASEMEIG |0 I3 £1 ULTINGEUD
oog'e osl's Dbl oEa'll JAUUELE Sexan Sunmnuo )
Al 18 IR COELADLT O LOTING LGS - Aty
Ipia's! § RLITR § BOMIST 8 opuIr 8 Ao

spuBUElrAN] PuRmLe ) pUE Zuieue)y
suawdojaazg Anuswmsy

FQELOAE ) [Enaay 1mdpng wEpeqg
Hoeroakg ILLIF | (LIRS
FIURLIE 4

LI0T *0€ Jung papeg duay
FUMITHIE KOS YANOD AMY.LID00E
S04 TY LNIWNEIADD
KOLYON 40 ALLY
ity
L ATIATHIG




CITY OF NORTON
COMPONENT UNIT SCHOOL BOARD
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

SCHEDULE 2

Jane 30, 20011
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TOTALS
Schoal School Sebool Schoal
Operating Teutbook Health Retirement  Caletenia
Fund Fund Fund Fund June 30, 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - M1s § 158,138 5§ 161 460 % TEITS 5 638 2TH
Accounts receivable 729 729
[ug from other funds 18686 42006 60,692
Due from primary povernmen 2RA17 E JRA17
Thie from eiher governmental units YT - : 145 654
TOTAL ASSETS § H75991 5 158,034 % 161 460§ 118185 € 1313770
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
LIABRILITIES:
Acenints payahle 5 174435 § . 1 5 L1 174 435
Accroed liabslines 646 38T - - 646,387
Dwe 1o other funds 42,006 - 18 484 60,697
Defermed Revenoe - - B .
Total Lasbakivses 852,523 - 18,686 881514
FUND RALANCE:
Renricted 13,163 - . . 13,163
Committed - 158,134 161460 55499 419063
Tofal Fund Balance 13,163 158,134 161,460 05,499 432256
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE H §75991 § 158,134 & 161460 § 118,185 § 1313770
Reeonciliation of Component Units Combining Ralance Sheel 1o
Statement of Net Assets - Component Unit-School Board 5 432,258
Total fund halarces- companent unit
Amourt reporied for component enit activities i the Statement of Met Assets
are different because:
Oher liabilutics not pasd from cumeni-penod revenees e nol reported i funds for
Accrued interest 111,877
Accrued compeniated aliences (69,377}
Dieferred revenue (14, 488)
Capital nsss used in governmental activities are it financial reseurces and
therefore are not reported in the funds, net of sceumulated depreciation 1,802 827
Moncurrent liabilides are nat due and payable in the current period and therefone
pre not reported in the funds 3 (766,313
Tatal nel nsseis - comporent umit-School Board 5 1.373,028
The notes te finangial satcamems are & integral pan of tos statement. £



CITY OF NORTON

COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

SCHEDULE 3

Year Ended June 30, 2011
School School School School Tutal
Operating Textbook  Health Retirement  Cafeteria School
Fund Fund Fund Fund Board
REVENUES:
Revenue from wse of money and
propemny 5 723 0% 1398 £ 1062 % 149 § a2
Charges for services - - 110,040 110,040
Miscellancous 30,750 - . 2429 4217
Intergovernmental
Primary govemment I.79B.115 - |, 798,115
Commaonwealth of Virginia 4,292,949 - . 4,292 949
Federal Government 1.921,880 = s o 1.921 880
Tetal Revenues 8053417 1398 1,062 112618 B.168.495
EXPENDNTURES:
Current:
Edhscation 7.624.29] 107.714 35205 308,120 2075330
Debit Service: =
Principal 100, 258 - . 100,258
Intorest 23.720 = S et 25720
Total Expenditures 1.750.269 107,714 35205 308,120 8,201,308
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Owver Expenditures 303,148 {106,316} {34,143 (195.502) (32813
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Operating transfers in . 51,163 10,000 245,559 306,722
(perating transfers out (36,722) - . . {306,722}
Tatal Cither Financing Sources
(Lises) ___(306.722) 51.163 10000 245559 :
Met change in fund balance {3,574y (35.133) {24,143} 50,057 (32.813)
Fund Balance at June 30, 2010 16,737 213287 185 603 49.442 465 069
Fund Balance at June 30, 2011 ] 13,163 § 158,134 § 161 460 % 99499 § 432 256
Reconciliation of Revenues. Expendituncs, and Changes in
Fund Balances - School Board Funds (o the Statement of Activities
Net Change n fund balances - total school board funds (32813
Amounts reported Tor governmental activilies in the statement
of net nssets are different because:
Governmental fund report capital outlays as expenditures, However, i the
simtement of activitics the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated
uselul lives and reported as depreciation expense. This 18 the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation, {126,325)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide curvént financial
resources are nol reported as revenue in governmental funds -
Repayment of Bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the payment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Proceeds
of debt s an income item in governmental funds but the receipt of procecds
increases long-term lrabilities. This 5 the amount principal payments excecded
new debt proceeds (49,021)
Some expenses reporied im the statement of activitics, such as compensated
absences and sccrued mierest, do not sequire the use of current financial
resources and therefore are not required as expenditures in governmental funds {1.555)
Change i net assets of governmental activities 5 (209,714)
The netes to fnancinl statements are an integral part of this statement fil



SCHEDULE 4

CITY OF NORTON
COMPONENT UNIT - SCHOOL BOARD
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDLULE - OPERATING FUND

Year Ended June 30, 201 |
GENERAL FUND
Variance
Original Final Favorahle
Budpet Budgei Actual _Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
Revenue from use of money and
[Hroperty 3 - % - 723 5 (723)
Clinrges for services = . . .
Miscelluneous 2800 2800 39,750 3,950
[ntergovernmental
Primary government 1,904 546 1504, 546 I.798.115 {106,431)
Commonwealth of Virginia 4,260,112 4385171 4,292 949 (52.222)
Federal Government 1,822 580 1.B22.580 1921880 99300
Total Revenues __7.9%0.038 1115097 BOSIAIT _ (6].680)
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
Community Development = - = .
Public safety : = - z
Miscellanenus . - . .
Public works " - .
Health and welfure - . . .
Fducation 7679060 T.E2LB56 7.624 291 156, 565
Trebt Service: F
Fringipal 140, 258 100,258 100,258 -
Interest 25720 25,720 25720 :
Total Expenditres 7805038  7.946834 7750269 196,565
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 185,000 168 263 303,148 134,885
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Loan Proceeds . - - -
Operating ransfers in . - - .
Operating transfirs out (185,000} _ (1R5.000) {306,722) (121,722)
Total Ciher Financing Sources
(Uses) ___(185000) _  (185,000) (306,722) (121.722)
Excess of revenue and other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uges - budget basis - (16,737 (3,574) 13,163
Net appropriations from fund balance
Prior vear encumhbrances - 16,737
Budget- excess of revenue, other financing sources and - -
appropriations from fond balance over expendilures
and other financing wses
Fund Balance - July 1 , 2010 = 16,737
Fund Balance - June 30, 2011 b 13,163

L



SCHEDULE S

CITY OF NORTON
STATEMENT OF TREASURER'S ACCOUNTABILITY
June 30, 2011

ASSETS HELD BY THE TREASIURER:

Cash on hamd 5 1,150
Cash in banks:
Checking:
First Bank and Trusl 2,526,681
Total Checking 2,526,681
Certificates of Deposit:
Powell Walley Mational Bank 44,609
Tatal Certificates of Deposit 44,600
Total Cash in Banks 2.570,290
Investments:
Investment in State Treasurer's Local Government
Invesiment Pool - 20427
TOTAL ASSETS b 2,592 867

LIABILITIES OF THE TREASURER:

BALANCE OF CITY FUNDS $ 2.592 867

NOTE: The vaniance between this ststement and the balance sheet for all funds 15 £1,407,705, This smounl represents
cash for the Morton Industrial Development Authority, The funds for the authority are not under the Treasurer's
ageountability and are included as a result of Norton Industrial Development Authority being s component unil.

The notes w0 financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 3



CITY OF NORTON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

A} SUMMARY OF AUMT RESULTS

i)

)

2)

3

4

5

6)

7

81

%

The audilor's report expresses an unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial statements
of the City of Naron, Virginia.

Mo significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the general purpose financial statements of the
City of Noron, Virginia, are reporied in the Auditor's Report on Intemal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matiers Based on an Audit of Financial Stalements
Performed in Accordance with Government Awditing Stondurds

Mo instances of non-compliance material o the general purpose financial statements of the Clly
of Morton, Virginia, were disclosed during the audit,

Mo significant deficiencies relating to the audit af the major federal award programs are reporied
in the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to each Major Program and Intemal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

The Auditor's report on Compliance for the Major Federal Award Programs for the City of
Norton, Virginia, expresses an unqualified opinion.

Audit findings that are required to be reporied in accordance with Section 510 {a) of OMB
Circluar A-133 are reporied in this Schedule.

The programs tested as major programs are designated with an ™" on the accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

The threshold for distinguishing tvpes A & B programs was $300,000,

The City of Moman, Virginia, was not eligible 1o be a low risk auditee,

FINDINGS - GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

MONE

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUMT

NONE

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statemenl.

SCHEDULE 6
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Frders!

Latalogut # _ Evpesditures

CITY OF NORTON
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FERERAL AWARDS
Vear Ended Jume 30, 201 1
BEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Direet Paymenis:
Winter & Wanteweiter Dusposal Systems-ARREA
Pave Thevugh Paymenrs:
State Department of Agriculture:
Summer Foral Seroe
Sehoal Lunch Program
Seheol Breakfasr Program

DEFARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Pans-Through Paymenis:

Sente Deparissent of Social Services:
Fesad stamp admimvisirataon
Chalid Care and Developmens Block Grant -ARRA
Fisiter Care = Title IV-F
Foster Care - Tilke IV-E ARRA
TANF
Satial Rervices Block Gram
_ﬂlue_!._ ALsipance
Adoption Assaiange- ARRA
Cheld Cate Asticiamps
Wi dl a3RRaNce progte
Cherled Canre Manndanory Mlasch
Lo laowne Home Foesgy Assnz
Safe s Stabie Fammlies
Betuge wx) Frmam Asi
Seate Chaldorr's inswrarce Progisen
Chuld Wellirg Services State Grant
Chafiee Foster Care Independence Pragrsm

DEPARTVIENT OF EDUCATION:
Famn-Throwgh Payments:
Seate Depariment of Educstine:
Ispraaviing teacher qualicy stars grarts
Tilbe | Girars
Tiile I Grants ARRA

Title VI-H:
Special Educatlon:
Title VI ldea <811
Title VIR ARRA
Special Eduestan Pre-School Grants
Stmte Grarss for Stengthenmg the Skells of Teschers and
bt tuon wn Sathe=aticy. Foneign Langusges s Crormputes

Veratsoral Edatatson - Biiec Gramts to Stees
gl aned bpw e
Salle i Drug Free Schacis
L By Teach l / Hashory
Improvement of Education-Hustory Gras

Fiducation Srate Fiical Stabnlization- ARRLA
Uew Up

Title 11, Part D Education Texhology Grant
Fdugaiion Technology Grang ARRA

DEPARTMENT ©F HOUSING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
Community Develogment Geants

APPALACHIAN REGIONA L COMMISSION DIRECT FROGRAMS
Appalachian Begsonal Development

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

DEPARTMENT OF EMERGENCY SERVICES
Astitance o Firefighters

BEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Uhiapant Protecoien [N Bnficooment

ENVIRDNMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
ARFAL apetalzatron Graens for Dviek mg Wter

TOTAL

Danastes Major Program er Major Program Cluvier

nmw s R lie =
10 559 2150
[0 555 159,335
0553 42,354

10 541 132,061

LER k] 036
LR 45127
LR T
QY558 91,540
T1a8T 9008
1 a59 Jez
Lag ) I355%
LR ] 14625
Ll | T2 K14
LR 250
e TAW
o1 5is LTS
90 58d 180
o3 767 3,500
1445 g
TaT Erd
4 347 2927
LER L] 246021
k4 189 504833 ¢
B4 a2 209,708 =
B34 41E15 =
BaiTa 12787
B4 B4R 15 A5E
Lo ] 23347
B s s 1

| E i L] 6.5 *
B 25 48122
B0 475800 *
L] TR A5
LA RIE SHE0
B tHE "
14228 TH G2 *
23000 445300 =
7 0da 411
20 607 rTies

B 448 466379 =

1] This Sahedule has been prepared wsing the Medified Accraal Basls af Accoumilng.

The ncees to fananoinl stetements are an insegnl past of this staement

SCHEDULE Y

L]



STATISTICAL SECTION

The information in this section is not covered by the Independent Auditor’s Report, but is presented as supplemental data for
the benefit of the readers of the comprehensive annual financial report. The objectives of statistical section information are to
provide financial statement users with additional historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information
in the financial statements, notes 1o financial statements, and required supplementary information to understand and assess a
government's economic condition.

CONTENTS PAGE

FINANCIAL TRENDS 67
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

REVENUE CAPACITY T2
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader assess the City's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax,

DEBT CAPACITY 75
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's current
levels of outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 78
These schedules offer economic and demographic indicators to help the reader understand the
Environment within which the city's financial activities take place.

OPERATING INFORMATION 80
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
reports for the relevant year.
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TABLE 5
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
ASSESSED VALUE AND ACTUAL VALUE OF ALL PROPERTY (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal

Years Public Utilities

Ended Real Personal Machinery Real Perzonal Moaobile Total Assessed Total Direct

June 30 _Estate Propernty and Tools Estale Property Homes Value Tax rate per $100
2011 S202,774,175 5 24275249 § 5534737 § 25290691 S 128,359 § 1829482 § 259833193 5§ 0917
2010 200,402,000 22,747,754 5,181,036 24,358,835 128,859 1,877,582 254,696,066 1.237
2009 203,528,195 22228011 4,471,807 26,302,792 140,301 1,548,259 258,619,365 0917
2008 181,461,721 21,629.450 4,571,874 24413,178 157 861 2,103,400 234,337 484 0,929
2007 180,101,130 16,733,091 7,006,663 26,523,134 184,423 2,086,500 232,634,941 0.849
2006 169,579,975 20,019,215 3384221 28,534 246 198,053 2,036,300 223,752,010 0.840
2005 141,741,519 18,742,980 1397275 31,147,200 217,235 2,183,700 197,429,909 0.856
2004 137,192,000 20,340,630 3.293,184 30,676,915 295,160 2468500 194,266,189 0.860
2003 136,867,000 20,741,289 3,143,600 27412952 254,802 2,483,300 190,902,943 0.892
2002 135,561,300 20,777,099 3,065,000 32,189,800 282818 2,459,300 194,335.317 0.872

1y Property is assessed at actual value therefore the assessed values are equal to actual value.

TABLE &
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
DIRECT PROPERTY TAX RATES (UNAUDITED)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Fiscal
Years Public Utilities
Ended Real Personal Machinery Mobile Real Personal
June 30 Estate Property and Tools Homes Estate Property
011§ 080 $ 185 § 185 § 030 S 080 § 185
2010 0.80 1.85 1.85 0.80 0.80 185
2009 0.80 1.85 1.85 0.80 (.80 1.85
2008 0.80 1.85 1.85 0.80 0.80 1.85
2007 0.70 1.85 1.85 0.70 .70 1.85
2006 0.70 |85 1.85 0.70 0,70 1.83
2005 0.70 1.85 1.85 0.70 0.70 1.85
2004 0.70 1.85 1.85 0.70 0.70 185
2003 0.70 1.85 1.85 0.70 0.70 1.85
2002 0.70 1.85 1.85 0.70 0,70 1.85

3 1) Rates are presented per 3100 assessed value



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

FRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS (UNAUDITED)

June 30, 20011 and June 30, 2006

TABLET

June 30, 2011

Percent of

Rea! Estale

Wame Mature of Busingss Assessed Value Lewvy

Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust Commercial Retailer/Grocer £ 14,208,300 7.05%
Super Imermediale Co., LLC Shopping Center 9,266, 500 4.57%
Commonwealth Morton Partners Shopping Center 6,623,500 1.:0T%
G.E, Credit Equities Shopping Center 5,946,300 2.%3%
Wellmom Heath System Healih Care 5,872,200 2.90%%
Mordan, Inc Hatel 3.826,300 1.89%
Norton Communily Hospital Health Carne 1,574,600 1.76%
Noron Host, LLC Hotel/Restaurant 3,546,000 1.75%
WP Armistcad Commercial and Residential Rental Property 2.435.900 1.20P%
AARMP Hospitality {Days Inn) Hotel 1.819.800 (.90
June 30, 2006:

Percent of

Real Estate

MNome Muture of Business Aszeszed Value Levy

Norton HMA, Inc Health Care % 16.511.500 9.74%
Mew Plan Excel Realty Shopping Center 11,306,700 6.67%
Commaonwealth-NTN Pariners Shopping Center £,630.000 5.09%
Wal-Mart Commercial RetaileriGrocer 5,835,340 3.44%
Mordan, Ine Hotel 1,699,500 2.18%
Cieorge Hunnicutt Mar. Tr. Commercial and Residential Rental Propenty 3316400 1.96%
Consolidated Investments Shopping center 2,863,200 1.69%
W.P. Armistead Commercial and Residentinl Rental Property 2,302,700 i.36%
115, Properties Commercial Property 2.023.000 1.19%
Five Forty Park Corp Commercial and Residential Rental Peoperty 1,070, 100 0.6%%

1) Data not available for periods prior to June 30, 2006.
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TABLE 8
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Percent of
Fiscal Total Tax Percent of
Years Current Percentof  Delinguem Collections Outstanding Delinguent
Ended Total Tax Tax Levy Tax Total Tax to Tax Delinquent  Taxes to
June 30 Lewvy (1)2) Collections Collected Collections Collections(3) Levy Taxes Levy

2011 § 2470,143 § 2240426 QO70% % 61,974 2,302.400 9321% § 310,935 12.59%
2010 3,319,804 3,061,824 92.23% 33,651 1095475 931.24% 230,997 £.96%
2009 2,372,555 2317343 97.6T% 22769 2.340,112 98.63% 91.330 3.85%
2008 2,142,563 2,117,885 98.85% 37,259 2,155,144 1(H1.59%, 67,622 3.16%
2007 1,936,503 1,910,346 08.65% 35,736 1,946,082 100.49% 63,713 3.29%
2006 1,846,506 1,827 354 08.96% 25,705 1,853,059 100.35% 57.091 1.09%
2005 1,646,156 1,621,764 0F.52% 33,689 1,655,453 100.56% 64,268 31.90%
2004 1,599,875 1,577,589 98.61% 30,246 1,607,835 100.50% 79.526 497%
2003 1,590,001 1,454,053 91.45% 201,756 1,655,809 104.14% B9,546 5.64%
2002 1,623,046 1,567.698 06.59% 76,444 1,644,142 101 .30% 153,498 9.46%

i 1) Exclusive of penalties and interest,
{2} Does not include land redemptions.

(3) Commonwealth reimbursement for auto tax included in total collections.

74



STUFLARS [PLIURULY 3L 0] S2100 240 W1 PUNGJ 84 Ues jgap Supuesing s 40 sy Supaedal gnag ()

£zl § %EI0 E0ENEt T
F || § IO GOT'LEY SO0Z
oo § %Ll Lot 06t SO0L
1ES § %AR0 SEST1L0T LOOT
STFT  § %KOF (LT s 00T
968 § %9t O TEE0 G00T
SIFT  § WEYE 1EL°9ET6 010z
(LT § %IfE TELETLG 110
ojide’y Auadodg spuog Of aunf
134 Joanjep uonedign papucy
Ajquse | pEniay [BIUTY EALET
Jo afmuana,g UIPLBESING (#2514
19301
pRpuog] [0
SHVAAL TYISId NAATS LSV
(AQILIANVYNN) ONIANYLSLNO L8330 a3aN08 TVHANTD 40 010LVH
VINIDEIA ‘NOLHON 40 ALLD
01 31EvL
suonEdijgo gap uus-Fuo) [riauad [[e sapajau] (Z)

Endn A Jo AUSIBAIL 1T AL Njgnd 0] i) (1) SN0
¥ %I09 SLEEIE S CHTERED £R1C8F T T COC I8 FO0T
6FET Sell'9 180°691°6 IP69T1'9 0s0°60r'T 188561 60T LEY SO0T
§8E'T 1Y s 9R0EH16 GH5'9EE'D [E10EE'T T96'SEL LBEDEE S00T
01z YeL'S LRPROP6 16E'LT6'Y SV ol THR'9E] CECTLLDT LODE
06l Ya6t6 LILRSE9] QTT'IPE'Y CER'O0EL [T EEST 596 ROOT
996"y %08 6L TER'CI PEEIRL'E LOG18TT NEEROT A 60T
060’y 1868 GTIOIEET TLE'SEI'S 6008 T TReIL IEL9ET'6 010t
CIR'E 0t 6 RETRIGCIS 165'979°C FEA'19L'E 5 TLG'STI 3 [ELELLG 10T

mdi Saauf gad] Spuog] spuog S Spudy 0f aunf
g [EuOsia jo e napy JEMIISE N, PUE SR endegy wonedlgo papuy
simuanng uauodwo’y uonESg() [RIM0 [RLay Siea )
sanialny adi]-ssauisng SUUATIY |Estg
—H—EEEHW

A IHVL

SHVAA TVISIA LHDIF LSY7]
(@I LanNyNI) 3dAL A8 1930 ONIANVISLIO0 40 OLLYH
VINIDHIA ‘NOLHON 40 ALID



S EEr NI Tr Wil e S wii il L0 ) W Lt o wil el e d
SLED99 L § APOLET] % RS elETl 3 Leveeanl 5 GonGPPLl 8 GEOREINL 5 HOBLGLEl 8 HORGLES| & GLEEELEl 1 CLotLLsl 5
BT S0 535 0 FORTIE 91 ChE 0l Tkt SLL T TR FEBOSF e T [T
(TR (i) i w] Hrizest Tres oo sl FELKN fEleoisdd  foosssyd s 9gee) h50'e6T £F T 5]
BITBTVE GEIOIESL 68 PRSI LILBSED IEFE0FG SEOCHL 'S RG0S HEE'ELP'G 1&1'806s 11 5
LEF 908 T FROOLETT [y T [T LTI PRI TiEERl Ll esRl 9l b LIPS (KT
N30 8 WLFPLO90: 5 ILLFII84] 5 GILBARLLI 8 SIGESELAL & Ceaeecvsl & OOITRLL®l 8
[ITH ool [ #OL LonE N 00T [IH [ oot

ILATIHY

SHYAA IV NAL LSV
(RN YR NOLLYINHOAR] KISHYIN L0 1Y 0300
VINEZFHIA "NOLHON 40 ALLD

T

1 g jo sdrieocasd v e
et 6 3 dde 1g3p @u e

upllinin 1qap peian

Ul igap
o3 qgepdde wap jo a0 ma)

wa) e - 953

U papucd FoL
g oy sguaidde a0

i passsrsn
et o s | - i Mga0)
wsdomm gap el

Ausdond prai paa o sy, paasey
FUS IR pATRSTY



Fiscal
Years
Ended
June 30
a1
2010
2008
2008
2007
2006
2005
204
2003
2002

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE (UNALUIMTEDY)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Water and Wastewater Revenue Bonds

TABLE 12

Utility Less: Met

Service Operating Available Debt Service

Charges Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Totul Coverage
2336189 5 2047590 5§ 188599 % 155098 % 93,546 5 248642 0.76
2349 376 2,065,484 183,892 1,143 93,895 175.038 1.05
2346475 2213375 133,100 81,768 06,443 178.211 0,75
1,991,660 2,150,133 [ 158,473) Tra70 89,362 162,032 {0.98)
2,073,492 1,882,789 190,703 74306 99,757 174,063 110
1.977.402 1LB92,174 RS, 228 75,759 91,571 167,330 051
1,917,899 1,702,307 215,592 72973 64,701 137.674 1.57
1,933,079 1,613 487 319,592 1,284,214 77043 1,361,257 0.23
1,892 813 1,716,270 176,543 63,745 77.858 141,603 1.25
1,875,521 1,623,370 252,151 61,263 63,884 125,147 201

1) Details regarding the cily’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial stalements.
Operating expenses do not include interest. depreciation, or amortization expense.



TABLE 13
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS (UNAUDITED)
LAST TEN YEARS

Fiscal

Years Per Capita

Ended Personal Median Median School Unemployment

June 30 Population Tncome Income Age Enrollment Rate
2001 4,099 $166,255440 40,560 40.0 852 6.40%
2000 1,743 170,590,968 45,576 an.2 256 6,60/
2009 3004 177,928,704 45,576 390 T84 5200
2008 3004 174,157 440 446100 KRNy T8O 4.10%
207 3,504 178,971,072 45,843 00 731 5000
2006 3,904 174,137 440 44,610 37.0 T3 [N
2005 3.904 152,306,752 9013 149 718 5.50%
2004 3.904 156,269,312 40,028 49 700 5.30%
2003 3,504 148.281.728 17982 kPR 704 4.90%
2002 31904 142,456,960 16,490 49 729 4.50%

Source: Weldon Cooper Center for Public Information, Bureau of Economic Analysis
Virginia Employment Commission, and Nonon City School Board



June 30, 2011

Emplover

Morton Community Hospital
Wal Mart
Bristol Regional Health System

Morton City School Board

City of Norton

June 30, 2006

Employer

Marton Community Hospital
Wal Mart
Mountain View Regional Medical

Norton City School Board

City of Norton

CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS (UNAUDITED)
CURRENT YEAR AND FIVE YEARS AGO

Product or Service

Health Care
Commercial Retailer/Grocer
Health Care
Public Agency

Public Agency

Product or Service

Health Care
Commercial Retailer/Grocer
Health Care

Public Agency

Public Agence

1) Fiscal year 2003-06 is first year of data available
2) Source: Virginia Employment Commission - Community Profile

TABLE 14

Total
Estimated

Employment®

375

250

200

150

H00

Total
Estimated

Employment*

S00

250

200

151

L



TABLE 15
CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT TOWN GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION (UNADITED)
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Function
General government
Management services is 35 4 4 4 4
Finance & 5 5 i 4 4
Flanning 2 2 1.5 2
Other 6.5 65 & 6 55 6
Public safety
Officers 16.5 15.5 i7.5 17.5 i} ] 17.5
Dispatchers/Clerks 5 f 7 7 T 7
Sheril1"s Office 4 4 9 4 4 3
Animal Control I 1 1 I I i
Building i ! 2 2 1 1
Emergency Management 1] 0 05 0.5 0.5 0.5
Fire I | I | 1 1
Fublic works
Engineening | 1 | 1 | 1
Strects 16 1% 11 12 13 13
Refuse Collections 1.5 45 4 4.5 4 5
General Propertics ] 5 4 5 4 4.5
Purks and recreation
Muinicnance 10.5 9 5 5 1] 55
Uther 7 7 6 6 ] 1
Water operalions
Adminisiration 2 2 2 i i 3
Plant Operations 7 & 6.5 6.5 7 7
Mumenance 1 5 T 7 7 g
Social Services
Adminisirative b k] 5 5 5 4.5
Eligibility 7 7
Socinl Worker 1 k] 3 3 i 3

1) Source: City of Noston's Finance depariment



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION (UNAUINTED)

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 14

2004 2007 el | 2008 2010 2011
Fanction
Public safety
Citatations issued 2,086 1873 251 2762 23N 1431
Parkang Tickiets rsued 418 523 BT s 1 3% a0
Crmme! Auvest/ Incadent sepornts filed 7 M b | Ebs m? 47
911 Cally despatched 4 006 EX 2L 417 5260 5059 5480
Public Warks
MNumber of cilien requesis for serviees 1054 1,024 B58 RS2 233 w72
Water operatund
Mumber of service connechions IM0 21386 227N 22mM 2292 2
‘Number of eitizém requests for services 2387 2483 2483 2349 1. B6& 1023
Average dady plas ouepat in gallens 1.0 Ml 110 Miltiem 1 0B4 Millien 70 Millan 70 Maltieom 70 Millian
Maximum daily eapacity of plant in gallons 1 44 Milticm 144 Million 1.44 Million 144 Millian 144 Mitlian | 44 Mellson
Wastewaler apertations
Number of 4rvice connechons 201 20 209 2003 2033 Al

ki



CITY OF NORTON, VIRGINIA

CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION (UNAUDITED)

Funetion

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 17

Public safety
Police stations
Fire stations
Mumber of patrol units

Public works
Streets (lane miles)
Streetlights
Traffic signals

Water operations
Miles of water main
Mumber of fire hydrants

Wastewater operations
Miles of sanitary sewers
Miles of storm sewers

006

$2.73
440

3531
230

41.14
0.2

2007

82.73
440

55.31
250

41.16
2.2

2008

82.73
440

5531
250

41.16
D2

2009

[

B2.73
440

55.31
230

41.16
9.2

et
[
=

Wby —

B2.73
440

5531
250

41.16
9.2

b2

[ -

Uh

82.73
440)

55.31
250

41.16
9.2

82



